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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals
Limited (‘the Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023, the Statement of Profit
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind
AS’) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as
at 31 March 2023, and its profit (including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in
equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of
the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
('ICAI’) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under
the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. Other information does not
include the standzlor:e financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained .in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited on the
standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (cont’d)

The Director’s report is not made available to us at the date of this auditor's report. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial
Statements

The accompanying standalone financial statements have been approved by the Company’s Board of
Directors. The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these standalone financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income,
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section
133 of the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intend to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statemenis

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the Act
we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls;

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

e Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
condltlons that may cast significant doubt on the Co p@é{ to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we ar /eqUIred c\ w attention in our auditor's report
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited on the
standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (cont’d)

to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern: and

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation. :

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

Other Matter

The standalone financial statements include the Company's share of profit from a Limited Liability
Partnership Firms ('LLP 1') in which the Company has invested, whose financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2023 have not been audited by us. These financial statements have been audited by
another auditor who have expressed an unmodified opinion on the financial statements of the aforesaid LLP,
vide their audit report dated 15 May 2023, which has been furnished to us by the management. Further, the
standalone financial statements also includes the Company's share of loss from another LLP (‘LLP 2'),
amounting to INR 0.00 million in which the Company was invested till 30 September 2022, whose financial
statements have not been audited by us. The financial statements of such LLP have also been audited by
another auditor who have expressed an unmodified opinion on the financial statements, vide their audit
report dated 08 April 2023, which has been furnished to us by the management. Our opinion on the
accompanying standalone financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of the aforesaid LLPs, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Further, the standalone financial statement also includes the Company's share of loss from a partnership
firm, amounting to INR 2.01 million in which the Company was invested till 31 December 2022, whose
financial statements have not been audited by us. The financial statements of the partnership firm is based
solely on such unaudited financial statements certified by the management. According to the information
and explanations given to us by the management, these financial statements are not material to the
Company.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements, and our report on other legal and regulatory
requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matter with respect to our reliance on the work
done by and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by section 197(16) of the Act based on our audit, we report that the Company has paid
remuneration to its directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down under
section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) ' Order, 2020 (‘the Order') issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act we give in the Annexure | a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

Further to our comments in Annexure |, as required by section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit, we
report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge

and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying standalone financial
statements; :

Chartered Accountants




Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited on the
standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (cont’d)

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books;

c) The standalone financial statements dealt with .by this report are in agreement with the books of
account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act;

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2023 from being appointed as
a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
the Company as on 31 March 2023 and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in Annexure |l wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion; and

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company, as detailed in note 35 to the standalone financial statements, has disclosed the
impact of pending litigations on its financial position as at 31 March 2023;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2023;

iil. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2023;

a. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in note
56(e) to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or securities premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any person or entity, including foreign entities (‘the intermediaries’), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company (‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in note
56(f) to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from
any persons or entity, including foreign entities (‘the Funding Parties’), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries') or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 7

c. Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the management
representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any material misstatement.

v.  The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 March 2023.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited on the
standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (cont’d)

vi. Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 requires all companies which use
accounting software for maintaining their books of account, to use such an accounting software
which has a feature of audit trail, with effect from the financial year beginning on 1 April 2023 and
accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as
amended) is not applicable for the current financial year.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

e
Tarun Gupta

Partner
Membership No.: 507892

UDIN: 23507892BGXQWQ5061

Place: New Delhi
Date: 30 June 2023
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Annexure | referred to in Paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited on the standalone financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we report that:

(iy (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment, right of use assets and
investment property.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

(b) The property, plant and equipment, right of use assets and investment property have been
physically verified by the management during the year and no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency of physical verification
programme adopted by the Company, is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets.

(c) The titlé deeds of all the immovable properties including investment properties held by the
Company (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease
agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in note 2a to the
standalone financial statements are held in the name of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment including Right of Use
assets or intangible assets during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as
amended) and rules made thereunder.

(i) (a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year, except for goods-in-transit. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of
such verification by the management is appropriate and no discrepancies of 10% or more
in the aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed as compared to book records.

(b) As disclosed in note 21 to the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned a working
capital limit in excess of Rs 50.00 million by banks based on the security of current assets. The
quarterly returns/statements, in respect of the working capital limits have been filed by the
Company with such banks and such returns/statements are in agreement with the books of
account of the Company for the respective periods, which were not subject to audit/review.

(iii) (a) The Company has made investments in and provide loan and guarantees to Subsidiaries
during the year as per details given below:
(2 in million)

Particulars Guarantees | Loans
Aggregate amount provided/granted during the year: 1,848.57 | 20,471.34
- Subsidiaries : 7

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of 1,849.57 | 8,575.60
above cases:

- Subsidiaries

(b) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the investments
made, guaranteed provided and terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and guarantees
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Annexure | referred to in Paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited on the standalone financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023 (Cont’d)

(iv)

(vi)

(c) Inrespectofloans granted by the Company, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment

of interest has been stipulated and the repayments/receipts of principal and interest are regular.

(d) There is no overdue amount in respect of loans granted to such companies, firms, LLPs or other

parties.

(e) The Company has not granted any loan which has fallen due during the year. Further, no fresh

(®

loans were granted to any party to settle the overdue loans/advances in nature of loan that
existed as at the beginning of the year.

The Company has not granted any loan, which is repayable on demand or without specifying
any terms or period of repayment.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of loans and
investments made and guarantees and security provided by it, as applicable.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not accepted any deposits or there are no amounts which have been deemed to be deposits
within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits)
Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Companies (Auditor’s

Report) Order, 2020 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Order’) is not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of
section 148 of the Act in respect of the products of the Company. We have broadly reviewed the
books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the Rules made by the Central
Government for the maintenance of cost records and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the
prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. However, we have not made
a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or
complete.

(vii) (a) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, undisputed

statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, income-tax, sales-tax, service
tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as
applicable, have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities, though there
have been slight delays in a few cases. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect
thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues

referred in sub-clause (a) which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities
on account of any dispute except for the following:

Name of | Nature Gross Amount Period to | Forum Remarks, if
the of dues | Amount | paid which the | where any
statute () in | under amount dispute is
million | Protest (Z)in | relates pending
million
Income Income 11.51 1.11 | FY 2016-17 | CIT (A) -
Tax Tax
6.25 0.90 | FY 2017-18 | CIT (A) -
11.09 - | FY 2019-20 | CIT (A) -
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Annexure | referred to in Paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited on the standalone financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023 (Cont’d)

(viii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43
of 1961) which have not been previously recorded in the books of accounts.

(ix)(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including representation received from
the management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the
Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, money raised by
way of term loans were applied for the purposes for which these were obtained

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on an overall
examinaticn of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised by the Company on short
term basis have, prima facie, not been utilised for long term purposes.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or
person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries and associate firm.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised any loans
during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries companies or associate firm.

(x) (@) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company. ,

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or (fully, partially or optionally) convertible debentures during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi) (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during
the period covered by our audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made fo
us by the management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Act
has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, with the Central Government for the period covered by our audit.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

given to us, all transactions
ce with sections 177 and 188

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information a
entered into by the Company with the related parti

’.’ﬁ-re in comp
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Annexure | referred to in Paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited on the standalone financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023 (Cont’d)

of the Act, where applicable. Further, the details of such related party transactions have been
disclosed in the standalone financial statements, as required under Indian Accounting Standard
(Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures specified in Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules 2015 as prescribed under section 133 of the Act.

(xiv) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
an internal audit system as per the provisions of section 138 of the Act which is commensurate
with the size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the reports issued by the Internal Auditors of the Company till date for the
period under audit.

(xv) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xv) of the Order with respect to compliance with the provisions of section
192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (@) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-|A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xvi)(a),(b) and (c) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

(b) Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management
of the Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016) does not have any CIC.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the current financial year as well as the
immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the plans
of the Board of Directors and management and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that
any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on
the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance
that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) According to the information and explanations given to us, although the Company fulfilled the
criteria as specified under section 135(1) of the Act read with Companies Corporate Social
responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, however in the absence of average net profits in the immediately
preceding three financial years, there is no reqUIrement for the Company to spent any amount

Order is not applicable to the Company.
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Annexure | referred to in Paragraph 13 of the independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited on the standalone financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023 (Cont’d)

(xxi) The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone
financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of
said clause under this report.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’'s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

— o

Tarun Gupta
Partner
Membership No.: 507892

UDIN : 23507892BGXQWQ5061

Place: New Delhi
Date: 30 June 2023
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Annexure Il to the Iindependent Auditor’'s Report of even date to the members of Akums Drugs
and Pharmaceuticals Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2023

Independent Auditor’'s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the standalone
financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
(‘the Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of Akums Drugs and
Pharmaceuticals Limited (‘the Company’) as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023, we have audited
the internal financial controls with reference {» financial statements of the Company as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management and These Charged with Governance for Internal Financial
Controls

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statement criteria established
by the Company considering the essential component of internal control stated in Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the ‘Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (the ‘ICAl’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’'s business, including adherence to the Company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Act.

Auditor’'s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to
Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing issued by the ICAIl prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, and the Guidance Note
issued by the ICAIl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of
such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the. reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and
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Annexure 1l to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Akums Drugs
and Pharmaceuticals Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2023 (cont’d)

inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of confrols, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023,
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued
by the ICAL

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

_/\(ﬁJJ-W

Tarun Gupta
Partner
Membership No.: 507892

UDIN: 23507892BGXQWQ5061

Place: New Delhi
Date: 30 June 2023



Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited
CIN - U24239DL2004PLC125888

Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023
(All amounts in & million unless atherwise slated)

As at As at
Particulars Netas 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 2a 2,032.84 2,028.54
(b) Right-of-use assels 54 477.50 284.33
(c) Capital work-in-progress 2b 161.29 5.17
(d) Investment property 3 192.57 196.98
(e) Inlangible assets 4a 21.12 22.09
(f) Intangible assels under development 4b 1.22 -
(9) Financial assels
(i) Investments 5 1,391.60 1,413.89
(ii) Loans 6 9,148.84 8,214.81
(iii) Others financial assets 7 118.76 105.08
(h) Non-current tax assets (net) 8 53.33 257.14
(i) Deferred lax assets (net) 20 31.34 -
i) Other non-current assets 9 100.74 59.87
Total non-current assets 13,731.25 12,587.90
{2) Current assets
(a) Inventories 10 1,971.20 1,793.09
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 1 2,561.33 3,039.27
(i) Cash and cash equivaients 12a 72.33 254.88
(iii) Bank balances other than (ji) above 12b 16.12 250
(iv) Others financial assels 13 91.94 169.32
(c) Current tax assets (net) 14a 114.05 -
(d) Other current assels 14b 383.85 292.53
Total current assets 5,210.82 5,551.59
Total Assets 18,942.07 18,139.49
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 15 286.13 143.07
(b) Other equity 16 2,828.91 1,712.31
Total equity 3,115.04 1,855.38
Liabilities
(1) Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 17 218.75 -
(i) Lease liability 54 407.75 166.91
(iiiy Other financial liabilities 18 10,152.89 10,549.45
(b) Provisions 19 82.07 81.27
(c) Deferred lax liabilfies (net) 20 - 127.94
Total non-current liabilities 10,861.46 10,925.57
(2) Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 21 1,237.10 1,222.16
(ii) Lease liability 54 17.43 13.79
(iii) Trade payables 22
Total outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises; and 143.89 96.25
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 1,635.83 2,424.90
(iv) Other financial liabilities 23 970.09 94.41
{b) Other current liabilities 24 903.76 1,328.63
(c) Provisions 25 57.47 178.40
Total current liabilities 4,965.57 5,358.54
Total equity and liabilities 18,942.07 18,139.49
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 1-56

This is the standalone balance sheet referred to in our report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountanls
Firm Registration No.: 001076N/ N500013

~
Tarun Gupta
Partner

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited

N7

Sandeep Jain

Sanjeev Jain

Director

Membership No: 507822

Place : New Delhi
Date : 30 June 2023
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Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited

CIN - U24239DL2004PLC125888

Standalone statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in & million unless otherwise stated)

Paiticulats Note Year ended Year ended
o 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

INCOME
Revenue from operations 26 12,868.26 11,620.61
Other income 27 961.53 584.76
Total income 13,829.79 12,205.37
EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed 7.912.11 7,865.07
Change in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 28 (30.55) (184.53)
Employee benefits expense 29 1,472.97 1,363.69
Other expenses 30 1,534.65 1,255.00
Total expenses 10,889.18 10,299.23
Earnings before fair value changes, finance costs, depreciation and 2,940.61 1,906.14
amortisation, exceptional item and tax (EBITDA)
Fair value changes on financial instruments 18.1 (439.70) 4,941.74
Finance costs 31 131.76 36.53
Depreciation and amortisation expense 32 300.03 277.63
Profit/ (loss) before exceptional items and tax 2,948.52 (3,349.76)
Exceptional items 33 (1,445.33) -
Profit/ (loss) before tax 1,503.19 (3,349.76)
Tax expenses:
Current income-tax

for current year 413.29 15.63

for earlier years (3.32) (12.21)
Deferred tax charge (161.08) 464.57
Total tax expense 248.89 467.99
Profit/ (loss) for the year 1,254.30 (3,817.75)
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit and loss

Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans 7.16 3.55

Tax effect relating to these items 1.80 0.89
Other comprehensive income, net of tax 5.36 2.66
Total comprehensive income (comprising of profit/ (loss) for the year 1,259.66 (3,815.09)
and other comprehensive income for the year)
Earnings per equity share of ¥ 2 (31 March 2022: ¥ 2) each
Basic and diluted 34 8.77 (26.69)
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory informatior 1-56
This is the standalone statement of profit and loss referred to in our report of even date
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited
Firm Registration No.: 001076N/ N500013 w b/
Tarun Gupta : Sanjeev Jain Sandeep Jain
Partner Director Director
Membership No: 507892 DIN: 00323433 IN:AQ0 \347

\ Q/ |
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Dharamvir Malik " Sumeet Sood

Place : New Delhi Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

Date : 30 June 2023 Mem. No.: FCS 8596




Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited

CIN - U24239DL2004PLC125888

Standalone statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in ¥ million unless otherwise stated)

a. Equity share capital

Particulars Amount
As at 1 April 2021 13.01
Changes in equity share capital 130.06
As at 31 March 2022/ 1 April 2022 143.07
Changes in equity share capital (refer note 15.1 for details) 143.06
As at 31 March 2023 286.13
b. Other equity
Particulars Reserves and surplus
Security Retained Put option Total
premium earnings reserve
Balance as at 1 April 2021 11.25 7,447.45 (1,801.24) 5,657.46
Add: (Loss) for the year - (3,817.75) - (3,817.75)
Less: Utilisation on account of bonus issue (11.25) (118.81) - (130.06)
Add: Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax
- Remesurement of defined benefit plans - 2.66 - 2.66
Balance as at 31 March 2022/ 1 April 2022 - 3,5613.55 (1,801.24) 1,712.31
Add: Profit for the year - 1,254.30 - 1,254.30
Less: Utillisation on account of bonus issue - (143.06) - (143.06)
Add: Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax
- Remesurement of defined benefit plans - 5.36 - 5.36
Balance as at 31 March 2023 - 4,630.15 (1,801.24) 2,828.91
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 1-56

This is the standalone statement of change in equity referred to in our report of even date

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited

Se¥ )

Sanjeev Jain andeep Jain

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 001076N/ N500013

./\m)w/

Tarun Gupta

Partner Director Director
Membership No: 507892 DIN: 00323433 DIN: 00323476
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Y
Dharamvir Malik eet Sood

Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

Mem. No.: FCS 8596

Place : New Delhi
Date : 30 June 2023




Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited

CIN - U24239DL2004PLC125888

Standalone statement of cash flow for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in  million unfess otherwise stated)

Particulars

Year ended

Year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

A. Cash flow from operating activities

Net profit/ (loss) before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation
Bad debts
Diminution in the value of investment in subsidiaries
Loans written off
Impairment of intangible assets under development
Loss on disposal of investment in subsidiaries
. Fair value changes on financial instruments
Provision for expected credit loss on trade receivable
Provision for expected credit loss on advance to suppliers
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment
Interest expense
Interest income
Gain on reassessment of ROU
Liability no longer required written back
Share of profit from investment in firm/ LLP
Rental income
Operating profit before working capital changes
Adjustments for movement in working capital changes:
Inventories
Trade receivables
Other financial assets
Other assels
Trade payables
Other financial liabilities
Provisions
Other liahilities
Cash flow generated from operations (gross)
Less: Taxes paid (net)
Net cash flow generated from/ (used in) operating activities (A)

B. Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (including
investment property, capital work-in-progres, capital advances and payable
towards property, plant and equipment)

Proceeds from sale of property plant and equipment

Investment in subsidiaries and associate

Investment in current investments

Investment in deposits having original maturity of more than 3 months
Loan given to subsidiary companies / LLP

Loan repaid by subsidiary companies / LLP

Withdrawals from partnership firm

Interest received

Rent received

Net cash flow (used in) investing activities (B)

C. Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from non-current borrowings

Proceeds from current borrowings (net)

Payment of lease liabilitities

Interest paid

Net cash flow generated from financing activities (C)

Net (decrease)/ increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (refer note 12a)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 12a)

N Sy |

C

1,503.19 (3,349.76)
300.03 277.63
8.19 0.60
30.64 .
710.00 -
697.50 =
7.19 "
(439.70) 4,941.74
543 (10.00)
36.00 .
(46.37) ’
131.76 36.53
(617.47) (433.44)
. (9.81)
(173.68) (1.82)
(51.80) (71.35)
(42.65) (20.98)
2,058.26 1,359.24
(178.11) (834.00)
464.32 (913.24)
72.46 (67.75)
(127.32) (96.79)
(741.43) 1,625.69
59.11 (11.96)
60.71 9.92
(424.87) 1,283.97
1,243.13 2,355.08
(303.00) (71.94)
940.13 2,283.14
(1,162.60) (302.86)
128.26 19.01
(15.54) (109.38)
- 190.07
(4.86) 45.19
(20,471.34)  (16,901.69)
18,827.21 13,570.77
34.28 54.90
600.26 433.44
42,65 20.98
(2,021.68) (2,979.57)
250.00 5
797.54 993.75
(42.21) (22.72)
(106.33) (21.18)
899.00 949.85
(182.55) 253.42
254,88 1.46
72.33 254.88
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Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited

CIN - U24239DL2004PLC125888

Standalone statement of cash flow for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in  million unless otherwise stafed)

Statement of cash flow (cont'd)

Components of cash and cash equivalents are as below:

Balance with scheduled banks

As at

As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

in current accounts 72.08 25412
Cash on hand 0.25 0.76
72.33 254.88

Disclosures as required in terms of Ammendment to Ind AS 7 'Stalement of cash flows' related to the change in financial liabilities arising from

financing activity is as below

Particulars Current Non-current Lease Put option Total
borrowings borrowings liabilities liability
(including book
overdraft)
Net debt as on 1 April 2021* 228.41 - 184.21 5,574.00 5,986.62
Cash flows
(Repayments)/ Proceeds 993.75 - (22.72) - 971.03
Non cash changes -
Interest on lease liability - - 15.32 - 16.32
Fair value changes to financial instrument (refer
nole 18.1) - - - 4,941.74 4,941.74
Gain on reassessment of ROU - - (9.81) - (9.81)
New leases - - 13.70 - 13.70
Balance as on 31 March 2022/ 1 April 2022 1,222.16 - 180.70 10,515.74 11,918.60
Cash flows
(Repayments)/ Proceeds 797.54 250.00 (42.21) - 1,005.33
Non cash changes
Interest on lease liability - - 25.43 - 25.43
Fair value changes to financial instrument (refer - - - (439.70) (439.70)
note 18.1)
Gain on reassessment of ROU - - = = -
New leases - - 261.26 - 261.26
Balance as on 31 March 2023 2,019.70 250.00 425.18 10,076.04 12,770.92
*Current borrowings as on 01 April 2021 includes interest payable to banks.
Summary of significant accounting policies and olher explanatory information 1-56

This is the stalement of cash flow referred to in our report of even dale.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 001076N/ N500013

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited

J

Sandeep Jain
Director

/\@W
Tarun Gupta
Partner

Membership No: 507892

Sanjeev Jain
Director
DIN: 00323433

\@/

Company Secretary
Mem. No.: FCS 8596

Sumeet Sood
Chief Financial Officer

Place : New Delhi
Date : 30 June 2023




Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited
CIN - U24239DL2004PLC125888
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

1
1.1

1.2

1.3

Company overview and summary of significant accounting policies

Company overview

Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited (the 'Company') is a public limited Company domiciled in India and incorporated under the
provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The registered office of the Company is located at Delhi.

The Company is engaged in contract manufacturing which involves manufacturing of pharmaceutical formulations and specializes in
developing new formulations, undertaking bio equivalence studies, clinical trials, obtaining Drug Controller General of India's (DCGI)
approval for manufacturing and marketing new Fixed Dose Combinations (FDCs) & molecules and thereby offering new formulations
with Company's own technology to its customers under their brand names.

Basis of preparation

The standalone financial statement of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act") read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
(as amended from time to time).

The standalone financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and amortised costs basis except for
certain financial assels and liabilities which are measured at fair value. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The standalone financial stalements of the Company are presented in Indian Rupees (), which is also its functional currency and all
amounls disclosed in the financial stalements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest two decimals in million as per the
requirement of Schedule Ill to the Act, unless otherwise stated.

All assels and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria
as set out in the Division Il of Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the time between
acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has asceriained its operating
cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

The Company has prepared the standalone financial stalements on the basis that it will continue to operate as a going concern.

The standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2023 were approved and authorised for issue by
Board of Directors in their meeting held on 30 June 2023. The Board of Directors can permit revisions to these financial statements
afler oblaining necessary approvals or at the instance of regulatory authorities, as per provisions of the Act.

The standalone financial stalements have been prepared using the significant accounting policies and measurement bases
summarised below. These accounting policies have been used throughout all periods presented in the standalone financial
statements.

Standards issued but not yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") nolifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. MCA, vide its circular dated 31 March 2023 has issued Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 to further amend the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as
below:

* Ind AS 1: Requirement to disclose 'material accounting policies’ instead of ‘significant accounting policies’ and related guidance
included to determine whether the policy is material or not. The Company does not expect the amendments to have any impact on its
financial statements.

* Ind AS 8: Definition of ‘accounting eslimates’ now included in the standard enabling distinclion between change in accounting
estimates from change in accounting policies. The Company does not expect the amendments to have any impact on its financial
statements.

* Ind AS 12 and Ind AS 101: Transactions that does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences at the time of
initial transaction have now been included in the exemplions for recognition of deferred tax liability and deferred tax assets in case of
taxable temporary differences. The Company does not expect the amendments to have any impact on its financial statements.

* Ind AS 101: New guidance added for deferred tax related to leases and decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities. The
Company does not expect the amendments to have any impact on its financial statements. The Company does not expect the
amendments to have any impact on its financial statements.

Use of judgment, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial stalement is in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments, eslimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income, expenses and
other comprehensive income (QCI) that are reported and disclosed in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Accounting
estimates could change from period to period. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

7

N A
R




Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited
CIN - U24239DL2004PLC125888
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

a)

b)

d)

e)

1.4

Judgements, estimates and assumptions

These eslimates and judgment are based on the management's best knowledge of current events, historical experience, actions that
the Company may undertake in the future and on various other eslimates and judgments that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes
or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they
occur. The judgements and key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources for estimating uncertainty at the reporting
dale, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are described below.

Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

Recognition of deferred tax assets - The exient to which deferred tax assets can be recognised is based on an assessment of the
probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilised.

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets — The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment of assels requires
assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets.

Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets — Management reviews its estimale of the useful lives of depreciable/amortisable
assels at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assels. Uncertainlies in these esltimales relate to technical and
economic obsolescence that may change the utility of Company’s assels.

Provisions and contingent liabilities — The Company is the subject of legal proceedings and tax issues covering a range of
matters, which are pending in various jurisdictions. Due to the uncertainty inherent in such matters, it is difficult to predict the final
outcome of such matlers. The cases and claims against the Company often raise difficult and complex factual and legal issues, which
are subject to many uncertainties, including but not limited to the facts and circumstances of each paricular case and claim, the
jurisdiction and the differences in applicable law. In the normal course of business, management consults with legal counsel and
certain other experts on matlers related to litigalion and taxes. The Company accrues a liability when it is determined that an adverse
outcome is probable and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. In the circumstances, when the outcome is not
probable, company accounts for that as a contingent liability.

Employee benefits — Management's estimate of the employee benefils is based on a number of critical underlying assumptions such
as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary increases. Variation in these assumptions may
significanlly impact the employee benefits amount and the annual defined benefit expenses.

Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and initial measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable costs
of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the
purchase price. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’'s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits allributable to such subsequent cost associated with the item will flow to the
Company. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in stalement of profit or loss as incurred.

In case an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired on deferred payment basis if any, interest expenses included in deferred
payment is recognised as interest expense and not included in cost of asset.

Subsequent measurement (depreciation and useful lives)
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on the straight line method. The following useful life of assets has been
taken by the Company:

Asset class Useful lives
Buildings 30 years
Plant and equipments 15 years
Furniture and fitlings 10 years
Vehicles 8/10 years
Office equipments 5 years
Computers 3/6 years
Research and development equipments 10 years
Electrical installations 10 years
Pollution control equipments 15 years

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if
appropriate.
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Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited
CIN - U24239DL2004PLC125888
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

1.5

1.6

Where, during any financial year, any addition has been made to any asset, or where any asset has been sold, discarded, demolished
or destroyed, or significant components replaced; depreciation on such assels is calculated on a pro rata basis as individual assets
with specific useful life from the month of such addition or, as the case may be, up to the month on which such asset has been sold,
discarded, demolished or destroyed or replaced.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is classified as
capital advances under other non-current assets and the cost of assets not put to use before such date are disclosed under ‘capital
work-in-progress’.

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss
when the asset is derecognised. ’

Intangible assets

Recognition and initial measurement

Intangible assets acquired separaltely are measured on inilial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are
carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent measurement (amortisation)

Al intangible assets are accounted for using the cost model whereby capitalised costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible asset is based on a number of factors including the
effects of obsolescence, demand, competition, and other economic factors (such as the stability of the industry, and known
technological advances), and the level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain the expected future cash flows from the asset.

The cost thereof is amortised over a period of 5 years. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are
reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of
future economic benefils embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are
treated as changes in accounting estimates.

Revenue expenditure on research is recognised as expense in the year in which it is incurred and are included with the respective
nature of account heads in the standalone statement of profit and loss.

Capilal expenditure on research is shown as addition to property, plant and equipment and depreciation is computed in a manner
prescribed for property, plant and equipment.

De-recognition

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the standalone statement of profit and loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Financial instruments

Financial instruments are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument and are
measured initially at fair value adjusted for transaclion costs, except for those carried at fair value through profit or loss which are
measured initially at fair value.

If the Company determines that the fair value at initial recognition differs from the transaction price, the Company accounts for that
instrument at that date as follows:

at the measurement basis mentioned above if that fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset
or liability (i.e. a Level 1 input) or based on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable markets. The Company
recognises the difference between the fair value at initial recognition and the transaction price as a gain or loss.

in all other cases, at the measurement basis mentioned above, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair value at initial
recognition and the transaction price. After initial recognition, the Company recognises that deferred difference as a gain or loss only
to the extent that it arises from a change in a factor (including time) that market participants would take into account when pricing the
asset or liability.




Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited
CIN - U24239DL2004PLC125888
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

@

(i)

Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities is described below.
Non-derivative financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into the following categories upon initial recognition:

Financial assets at amortised cost — a financial instrument is measured at amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on
the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial assets at fair value

Investments in equity instruments other than above — All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity
instruments which are held for trading are classified as at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL). For all other equity instruments,
the Company decides to classify the same either as at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) or fair value through
profit and loss (FVTPL). The Company makes such election on an instrument by instrument basis. The classification is made on inilial
recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding
dividends, are recognised in the other comprehensive income (OCI). There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to Profit and
Loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. Dividends on such
investments are recognised in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the P&L.
De-recognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it
transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset. If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers
assels recognised on its balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the
transferred assets are not derecognised.

Non-Derivative financial liability:-

Initial recognition

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is
classified as held for trading. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest
expense, are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Subsequent measurement
After initital recognition, the financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method (EIR).

Amorilsed cost is calculated by considering any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are integral part of the EIR.
The effect of EIR amortisation is included as finance cost in the statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire. The Company
also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are substantially
different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently

enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis to realise the assets and
setlle the liabilities simultaneously.
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1.8

1.9

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefils by
using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best
use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of uncbservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial results are categarized within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable.
Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial stalements on a recurring basis, Company delermines whether transfers
have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period or each case.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characterislics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Investment in subsidiaries

An investor, regardiess of the nature of its involvement with an enlity (the investes), shall determine whether it is a parent by
assessing whether it controls the investee. An inveslor controls an investee when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable retumns from
its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.

Thus, an investor controls an investee if and only if the investor has all the following:

a) power over the investee;

b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and

¢) the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor's returns.

The Company has elected to recognise its invesiments in subsidiary at cost in accordance with the option available in Ind AS 27,
‘Separate Financial Stalements’.

Investments carried at cost are tested annually for impairment as per requirements of Ind AS 36 - Impairment of Assets.

Impairment of financial assets

All financial assets except for those at FVTPL are subject to review for impairment at least at each reporting date to identify whether
there is any objeclive evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. Different crileria to determine
impairment are applied for each category of financial assets.

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expecled credit loss ("ECL") model for measurement and recognition of
impairment loss for financial assels carried at amortised cost.

ECL is the weighted average of difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate, with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights. When estimating the cash flows, the Company is required to consider —

« All contractual terms of the financial assets (including prepayment and extension) over the expected life of the assels.
« Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the confractual terms.
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Trade receivables

The Company assesses impairment based on expected credit losses (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment
loss, the calculation of which is based on historical data, on the financial assets that are trade receivables or contract revenue
receivables and all lease receivables.

The Company writes off trade receivables afier it is established beyond doubt that the account is uncollectible. Financial assets that
are written-off are still subject to enforcement aclivity by the Company.

Other financial assets

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assels and risk exposure, the Company determines whether there has been a
significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses, else at an amount equal to the
lifetime expected credit losses.

When making this assessment, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the financial
asset. To make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the balance sheet
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and
supportable information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial
recognition. The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has not increased significantly since initial recognition if
the financial asset is determined to have low credit risk at the balance sheet date.

Impairment of non-financial assets

For impairment assessment purposes, assels are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are largely independent cash inflows
(cash generaling units). As a result, some assets are tested individually for impairment and some are tested at cash-generating unit
level.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication based on internalfexternal factors, that an asset may
be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount of
the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generaling unit to which the asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount and the reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss. If, al the reporting date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists,
the recoverable amount is reassessed which is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value-in-use and the asset is
reflected at the recoverable amount subject to a maximum of depreciated historical cost. Impairment losses previously recognised are
accordingly reversed in the statement of profit and loss.

To determine value-in-use, management estimates expected future cash flows from each cash-generating unit and determines a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The data used for impairment testing procedures are
directly linked to the Company’s latest approved budget, adjusted as necessary to exclude the effects of future re-organisations and
assel enhancements. Discount factors are determined individually for each cash-generaling unit and reflect current market
assessment of the time value of money and asset-specific risk factors.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to setlle the obligation, and when a reliable estimate of the amount of
obligation can be made at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimates. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted to reflect its present value using a
current pre-tax rate that reflects the current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation.
When provisions are discounted, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Conlingent liability is disclosed for:

Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Company; or
Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

Conlingent assets are not recognised. However, when inflow of economic benefits is probable, related asset is disclosed.

Operating expenses
Operaling expenses are recognised in the standalone statement of profit or loss upon utilisation of the service or as incurred.
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Foreign currency transactions and translations

. Initial recognition

The Company's standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee ("), which is also the Company's functional currency.
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded on initial recognition in the functional currency at the exchange rates prevailing on the
date of the transaction.

ii. Measurement at the balance sheet date

Foreign currency monetary items of the Company, outstanding at the balance sheet date are restated at the year-end rales. Non-
monetary ilems which are carried at historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rale at the
date of the transaction. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value is determined.

Treatment of exchange difference
Exchange differences that arise on seltiement of monetary items or on reporting at each balance sheet date of the Company's
monetary items at the closing rale are recognised as income or expenses in the period in which they arise.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders (after
deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events including a bonus issue if any.

For the purpose of caiculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and
the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity
shares.

Taxes

Current income-tax

Current income-tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted in India, at
the reporting date.

Current income-tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or
directly in equity. Management periodically evaluales positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried
forward tax losses and tax credits.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can
be used. The exislence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a
history of recent losses, the Company recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary
differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset
can be realised.

The Company’s ability to recover the deferred tax assets is assessed by the management at the close of each financial year which
depends upon the forecasts of the future results and taxable profits that Company expects to earn within the period by which such
brought forward losses may be adjusted against the taxable profits as governed by the Income-tax Act, 1961. Deferred tax assels —
unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no
longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting dale, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset deferred tax liabilities and assets, and they

relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable enlity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle
deferred tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.
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Employee benefits
The Company provides post-employment benefits through various defined contribution and defined benefit plans:

Defined contribution plans

The Company's conlribution to provident fund and employee slate insurance fund is considered as defined contribution plan and is
charged as an expense as they fall due based on the amount of contribution required to be made and when services are rendered by
the employees. The Company has no legal or constructive obligation to pay contribution in addition to its fixed contribution.

Defined benefit plans

The defined benefit plans sponsored by the Company define the amount of the benefit that an employee will receive on completion of
services by reference to length of service and last drawn salary. The legal obligation for any benefils remains with the Company.

Gratuity is post-employment benefit and is in the nature of a defined benefit pian. The liability recognised in the financial stalements in
respect of graluity is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date, together with adjustments for
unrecognised actuarial gains or losses and past service costs. The defined benefit obligation is calculated at or near the reporting
date by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from past experience and changes in actuarial assumptions are credited or charged to the
statement of other comprehensive income in the year in which such gains or losses are determined.

Other long-term employee benefits

Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due or expected to be availed more than one year after the balance sheet
dale is eslimated on the basis of an actuarial valuation performed by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method.

Short-term employee benefils

All employee benefils payable wholly within twelve months of rendering services (such as, salaries, wages, short-term compensated
absences, performance incentives, expected cost of bonus, ex-gratia, etc.) are classified as short-term employee benefits. Expense
in respect of short-term employee benefils is recognised on the basis of the amount paid or payable for the period during which
services are rendered by the employee.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-
cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses
associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company
are segregated. Cash and Cash Equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and on hand and bank
deposit with banks where original maturity is three months or less.

Inventories

Inventories include raw material, stores and spares, finished goods, work in progress and packing material.

Inventories are stated at lower of cost or net realisable value. The cost in respect of the various items of invenlory is computed as
under:

(i) Raw materials and packing materials are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value. Hawever, these items are considered to be
realisable at cost if the finished products, in which they will be used, are expected to be sold at or above cost. The cost includes direct
expenses and is determined on the basis of weighted average method.

(ii) Stores and spares - at cost or net realisable value, whichever is less. Cost is computed on weighted average basis.
(1) Work in progress - includes the cost of raw materials, packing materials, an appropriate share of fixed and variable production
overheads as applicable and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

(iv) Finished goods - includes the cost of raw materials, packing materials, an appropriate share of fixed and variable production
overheads as applicable and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimaled selling price in the ordinary course of business less any applicable selling expenses. Provision
for expired stock and slow moving inventory , if required is made based on management's best estimates of net realisable value of
such inventories.
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Investment property

Investment properties are properties, either land or building or both, held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. Investment
properties are measured initially at cost including transactions costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
measured in accordance with requirement for cost model.

The Company depreciates building component of investment property over 30 years from the date of original purchase.

The management believes that these eslimated useful lives are realislic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the
assets are likely to be used.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Though the Company measures investment property using cost-based measurement, the fair value of investment property is
disclosed in the notes. Fair values are determined based on an annual evaluation performed by an accredited external independent
valuer.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently withdrawn from use
and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset is recognised in profit or loss in the period of derecognition. In determining the amount of consideration from the
derecognition of investment property the Group considers the effects of variable consideration, existence of a significant financing
component, non-cash consideration, and consideration payable to the buyer (if any).

Transfers are made to (or from) investment property only when there is a change in use.

Revenue recognition

The five step model of Ind AS 115 - 'Revenue from Contracts from Customers' is used to determine whether revenue should be
recognised at a point in time or over time, and at what amount is as below:

+ Step 1: Identify the contract with the customer

« Step 2: |dentify the performance obligations in the contract

» Step 3: Delermine the transaction price

* Step 4: Allocate the transaclion price to the performance obligations

» Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the enlity satisfies a performance obligation.

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration which the Company expecls to receive in exchange for those products or services.

- Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control is transferred to the customer (usually on dispatch of
the goods from the factory) which coincides with the performance obligation under the contract with the customer.

- Revenue from services is recognized in accordance with the terms of contract when the services are rendered and the related costs
are incurred.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for discounts, price concessions and
incentives, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer.

Revenue also excludes goods and service tax (GST) collected from customers, since GST not received by the Company on its own
account. Rather, it is collected tax on value added to the commadity/services by the seller, on behalf of the government and,
therefore, these are not economic benefits flowing to the Company. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue. Revenue from the sale
of goods is net of returns.

Other income
Other income is comprised primarily of interest income, exchange gainfloss on translation of other assets and liabilities.
Interest

Interest income is recognised as and when due on the time proportion basis by using effective interest method. Interest income is
included under the head "other income" in the standalone statement of profit and loss.




Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited
CIN - U24239DL2004PLC125888
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

1.22

1.23

1.24

1.25

Government grants

Govemment grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received, and all attached conditions
will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods
that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as
income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset,

Borrowings costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset, All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they occur. Berrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with
the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing
costs.

Leases

The Company as a lessee

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings. The Company assesses whether a contract
contains a lease, at inceplion of a conlract. A contract is, or conlains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (i) the Company has
substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to
direct the use of the asset,

At the date of commencement aof the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU") and a corresponding lease liability
for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low
value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operaling expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and
lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease
payments made at or prior fo the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any.

Right-of-use assets are amortised from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful
life of the underlying asset. Right of use assels are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortised cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are
discounted using the incremental borrowing rates. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related
right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment as to whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separalely presented in the standalone Balance Sheet and lease paymenls have been
classified as financing cash flows.

The Company as a lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operaling lease. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

Segment reporting

Operaling segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker.
The Company operates in a single segment of production of pharmaceuticals and relevant disclosure requirements as per Ind AS 108
"Operating Segments" have been disclosed by the Company under note no 48.

The board of directors of the Company has been identified as being the chief operaling decision maker by the management of the
Company.
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Earnings before fair value changes, finance costs, depreciation and amortisation, exceptional items and tax (EBITDA)

The Company presents EBITDA in the slalement of profit and loss; this is not specifically required by Ind AS 1. The term EBITDA are
not defined in Ind AS. Ind AS compliant Schedule IIl allows companies to present line items, sub-line items and sub-totals as an
addition or substitution on the face of the Financial Statements when such presentation is relevant to an understanding of the
company's financial position or performance or to cater to industry/sector-specific disclosure requirements or when required for
compliance with the amendments to the Companies Act or under the Indian Accounting Standards.

Measurement of EBITDA

Accordingly, the Company has elected to present earnings before fair value changes, finance costs, depreciation and amortisation,
exceptional items and tax (EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of the statement of profit and loss. The Company measures
EBITDA on the basis of profit/ (loss). In its measurement, the Company does not include fair value changes on financial instrument,
finace costs, depreciation and amortisation, exceptional items and tax expense.

The ammendments under Indian Accounting Standards, effective from 1 April 2022, do not have any material impact on the
Company.

\ (This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited

CIN - U24239DL2004PLC125888

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in  million unless otherwise stated)

3. Investment property

Tangible assets provided on operating lease to subsidiaries as follows:

Particulars Freehold land Buildings Total

Gross carrying value

Opening balance as at 1 April 2021 64.62 129.58 194.20
Additions during the year 48.88 - 48.88
Closing balance as at 31 March 2022/ 1 April 2022 113.50 129.58 243.08
Additions during the year - - -
Closing balance as at 31 March 2023 113.50 129.58 243.08
Depreciation

Opening balance as at 1 April 2021 - 40.97 40.97
Charge for the year (refer note 32) - 5.13 5.13
Closing balance as at 31 March 2022/ 1 April 2022 - 46.10 46.10
Charge for the year (refer note 32) - 4.41 4.41
Closing balance as at 31 March 2023 - 50.51 50.51

Net carrying value
As at 31 March 2022 113.50 83.48 196.98
As at 31 March 2023 113.50 79.07 192.57

Information regarding income and expenditure of Investment property

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Rental income derived from investment properties 20.66 12.96
Less — Depreciation (4.41) (5.13)
Profit arising from investment properties before indirect expenses 16.25 7.83

Fair Value of the above said property at the end of the year is ¥ 243.77 million (Rs. 215.01 million) as valued by an accrediled independent
valuer with specialisation in valuing these types of properties. The fair value so determined is higher than the carrying value of each
respective asset.

Fair market value is the amount expressed in terms of money that may be reasonably be expected to be exchanged between a willing
buyer and a willing seller, with equity or both. The valuation by the valuer assumes that Company shall continue to operate and run the
assels to have economic utility.

The Company has no restrictions on the realisability of its investment properties and no contractual obligations to purchase, construct or
develop investment properties or for repairs, maintenance and enhancements.

Fair value hierarchy
The fair value measurement for the investment property has been categorised as a Level 2 fair value based on the inputs to the valuation
technique used.

\ (This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited

CIN - U24239DL2004PLC125888

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in  million unless otherwise stated)

4a. Intangible assets

Particulars Brands Software Total
ltrademarks

Gross carrying value

Opening balance as at 1 April 2021 4.90 115.74 120.64
Additions during the year - 10.52 10.52
Closing balance as at 31 March 2022/ 1 April 2022 4.90 126.26 131.16
Additions during the year - 5.78 5.78
Closing balance as at 31 March 2023 4.90 132.04 136.94
Amortisation

Accumulated as at 1 April 2021 3.38 98.38 101.76
Charge for the year (refer note 32) 0.77 6.54 7.31
Balance as on 31 March 2022/ 1 April 2022 415 104.92 109.07
Charge for the year (refer note 32) 0.57 6.18 6.75
Balance as on 31 March 2023 4.72 111.10 115.82

Net carrying value
As at 31 March 2022 0.75 21.34 22.09
As at 31 March 2023 0.18 20.94 21.12

4b. Ageing of intangible assets under development

31 March 2023

Particulars Ageing
Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
year years
Software 1.22 - - - 1.22
License and rights (refer note 33) 697.50 - - - 697.50
Less: Provision for diminution in value of license (697.50) - - - (697.50)
1.22 - - - 1.22

There was no intangible assets under development as on 31 March 2022.

Note : There are no such project in intangible under development whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its
original plan as of 31 March 2023.

(This space has been intentionally left biank)
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Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited

CIN - U24239DL2004PLC125888

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in ¥ million unless otherwise stated)

. As at As at
Parliculars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
5. Investments
Investment in equity instrument
Investments in subsidiaries (measured at cost), Unquoted
5.1. Investment in equity instruments of subsidiaries
50,000 (31 March 2022: 50,000) equity shares of Amazing Research Laboratories Limited of 2 10 each 1.95 1.95
50,000 (31 March 2022: 50,000) equity shares of May and Baker Pharmaceuticals Limited of ¥ 10 each 0.50 0.50
50,000 (31 March 2022: 50,000) equity shares of Nicholas Healthcare Limited of ¥ 10 each 0.50 0.50
50,000 (31 March 2022: 50,000) equity shares of Plenteous Pharmaceuticals Ltd. of ¥ 10 each 0.50 0.50
Nil (31 March 2022: 10,000) equity shares of AVHA Lifesciences Private Limited of % 10 each® - 0.10
10,000 (31 March 2022: 10,000) equity shares of Sarvagunaushdhi Private Limited of 10 each 0.10 0.10
50,000 (31 March 2022: 50,000) equity shares of Maxcure Nutravedics Limited of ¥ 10 each 80.42 80.42
Nil (31 March 2022: 500,000) equity shares of Delcure Lifesciences Limited of ¥ 10 each® = 7.25
467,000 (31 March 2022: 467,000) equity shares of Malik Lifesciences Private Limited of ¥ 10 each 34.85 34.85
2,500,000 (31 March 2022: 2,500,000) equity shares of Pure and Cure Healthcare Private Limited 324.67 324.67
of ¥ 10 each
18,020,000 (31 March 2022: 18,000,000) equity shares of Unosource Pharma Limited of ¥ 10 each® 196.20 180.00
50,955 (31 March 2022: 50,955) equity shares of Akumenlis Healthcare Limited of ¥ 10 each 170.79 170.79
99,994 (31 March 2022: 99,994) equity shares of Akums Healthcare Limited of # 10 each 1.00 1.00
50,00,000 (31 March 2022: 50,00,000) equity shares of Akums Lifesciences Limited of Z 10 each 154.40 154.40
1,000 (31 March 2022: 1,000) equity shares of Burroughs Welcome Pharmacia Privale Limited of Z 10 each 0.01 0.01
1,654,121 (31 March 2022: 1,54,121) equity shares of Medibox Digital Solutions Private Limited of 10 each** 30.64 30.64
Less: Provision for diminution in the value of investment in Medibox Digital Solutians Private Limited (refer (30.64) -
note 33)

965.89 987.68

5.2 Investment in preference shares

Investments in subsidiaries (measured at cost), Unquoted

5918 (31 March 2022: 5,918) Cumulalive compulsory converlible participating preference shares of 424.21 424,21
Akumentis Healthcare Limited of Z 100 each

424.21 424.21

5.3 Investment in partnership firm

(Invesiments carried at cost, trade, long term, unquoled)
AUSL Pharma® - 0.40
(31 March 2022: Name of the partner and share of profit/capital- Akums Drugs & Pharmaceuticals Limited
(40%), Vikram Malhotra (36%), Sunil Anand (12%) and Jaideep Malhotra (12%), Tolal capital of the firm
1,000,000)

- 0.40

5.4 Other investments - investments in limited liability partnership ("LLP") firms
(Investments carried at cost, trade, long term, unquoted)
Upadhrish Reserchem LLP 1.50 1.50
(Name of the partner and share of profit/capital- Akums Drugs & Pharmaceuticals Limited (99.93 %) and
S.P. Ojha (0.07%), Tolal Capital of the LLP  1,501,000)
Akum Impex LLP* - 0.10
(31 March 2022: Name of the partner and share of profit/capilal- Akums Drugs & Pharmaceuticals Limited
(99.98%), Shri Sanjeev Jain (0.01%) and Shri Sandeep Jain (0.01%) . Total Capital of the LLP %

1.50 1.60

1,391.60 1,413.89

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 1,391.60 1,413.89
Aggregale provision for diminution in value of investments 30.64 2

Refer note 45 for disclosure of fair value in respect of financial assels measured at amortised cost and assessment of expected credit losses
** The Company is excericising control over Medibox Digital Solutions Private Limited jointly with its wholly owned subsidiary Maxcure
Neutravedics Limited

# The Company during the year has disposed off its investment in following entities: a) AVHA Lifesciences Privale Limited, b) Delcue
Lifesciences Limited, ¢) Akum Impex LLP and d) AUSL Pharma (refer note 42 for the date till which t g.control exists)

*During the year Company increased its stake in the following entities :

FY 2022-23
Acquisition from other equity holder :

Unosource Pharma Limited 16.20 0.11%
FY 2021-22

Acquisition from other equity holder :

Medibox Digital Solutions Private Limited 0.62 16%
Akums Lifesciences Limited 109.40 10%
Fresh investment made :

Burroughs Welcome Pharmacia Private Limited 0.01 100%

N 4
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Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited

CIN - U24239DL2004PLC125888

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in  million untess otherwise stated)

As at As at

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

6. Loans

Unsecured, considered good
Loans to related parties (refer note 42 and 53)* 9,148.94 8,214.81

9,148.94 8§,214.81

*Net of loan written off of Z 710.00 million (31 March 2022: ¥ 1,523.48 million)
* includes inlerest receivable from refaled parties amounting to ¥ 53.34 million (31 March 2022:  35.41 million)

Refer note 45 for disclosure of fair value in respect of financial assels measured at amortised cost and assessment of expected credit losses
respeclively.

7. Other financial assets

Security deposits 80.49 58.05
Deposit having remaining matuirty of more than 12 months* 38.25 47.01
Other receivable 0.02 0.02

118.76 105.08

*pledged with government authorities and others.

Refer note 45 for disclosure of fair value in respect of financial assels measured at amortised cost and assessment of expected credit losses
respeclively.

8. Non-current tax assets

Advance income-tax (net of provision) 53.33 257.14
53.33 257.14

9. Other non-current assets

Unsecured, considered good

Capital advances 41.08 0.21
Advances other than capital advances:
Tax deposited with sales tax department (refer note 35 (b)) 51.31 51.31
Prepaid expenses 5.29 5.29
Other receivable 3.06 3.06

Unsecured, considered doubtful

Capital advances 36.00 -
Less: Provision for expected credit loss (36.00) -
100.74 59.87

10. Inventories
(refer note 1.18 in respect of mode of valuation of inventories)
Raw malerials

on hand 1,097.36 1,026.56
in transit 73.85 32.74
Packing malerials ‘
on hand 355.42 321.07
in transit 3.37 3.756
Work-in-progress 146.06 201.81
Finished goods 260.59 174.29
Stores and spares
on hand 34.27 32.15
in transit 0.28 0.72
1,971.20 1,793.09

Refer note 39 for informalion on inventories pledged as security by the Company

\\ | | ,Q/




Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited

CIN - U24239DL2004PLC125888

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in ¥ million unless otherwise stated)

. As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
11. Trade receivables
Trade receivabies considered good (unsecured) 2,561.33 3,039.27
Trade receivables-credit impaired 32.39 26.96

2,593.72 3,066.23
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses (32.39) (26.96)
2,561.33 3,039.27
11.1 Dues to related party (refer note 42) 465.67 375.03

11.2 Refer note 39 for information on trade receivables pledged as security by the Company.
11.3 Refer nole 45 for disclosure of fair value in respect of financial assets measured at amortised cost and assessment of expected credit losses
respectively. All amounts are short term. The net carrying value of trade receivables is considered a reasonable approximation of fair value.

11.4 Refer note 50 (a) for the ageing of the frade receivables
11.5 No amount is due from directors or officers of the Company.

12. Cash and bank balances

12a. Cash and cash equivalents
Balance with scheduled banks

in current accounts 72.08 254,12
Cash on hand 0.25 0.76
72.33 254.88

Refer note 45 for disclosure of fair value in respect of financial assets measured at amortised cost and assessment of expected credit losses
respectively.
Refer nole 39 for assets pledged as security by the Company

12h. Other bank balances

Deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months and remaining 16.12 2.50
malurirty of less than 12 months

16.12 2.50
Refer note 45 for disclosure of fair value in respect of financial assets measured at amortised cost and assessment of expected credit losses
respectively.

Refer note 39 for assels pledged as security by the Company

13. Other financial assets

Unsecured, considered good

Dues from partnership firm and LLPs (refer note 42) 53.83 71.35
Balance with statutory and other authorities 34.11 93.97
Other loans and advances 4.00 4.00

91.94 169.32

14a. Current tax assets
Income tax refundable 114.05

114.05 -

14b. Other current assets

Unsecured, considered good

Advance to suppliers and others 86.71 54.87
Prepaid expenses 32.57 23.01
Balance with statutory authorities 261.06 212.03
Others* 3.51 2.62

383.85 292.53

Yinchides CSR asset amouting to ¥ 0.54 million (31 March 2022: ¥ 0.50 million). Refer note 44 for details.
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Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited

CIN - U24239DL2004PLC125888

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in T million unless otherwise stated)

As at As at

Fartiodlars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

16. Equity share capital

Authorised

15,00,00,000 (31 March 2022: 7,50,00,000) equity shares of ¥ 2 (31 March 2022: % 2) each 300.00 150.00

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up

14,30,64,350 (31 March 2022: 7,15,32,175) equity shares of ¥ 2 (31 March 2022: T 2) each 286.13 143.07
286.13 143.07

15.1 Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
No. of shares ¥ No. of shares ¥
At the beginning of the year 71,532,175 143.07 1,300,585 13.01

Add: Shares issued during the year
- Additonal shares issued on account of share

split in the ratio of 1:5 - - 5,202,340
- Bonus share issued during the year 71,632,175 143.06 65,029,250 130.06
At the end of the year 143,064,350 286.13 71,532,175 143.07

15.2 Termsl/rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having face value of ¥ 10 per share. Each equity shareholder is entitied to one vote per
share.

In the event of winding up of the Company, the equity shareholders will be entitled to be repaid remaining assets of the Company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts, in the ratio of the amount of capital paid on such equity shares.

On 03 October 2019, the Company executed a shareholders’ agreement (“the Agreement”) with its existing shareholders (Mr. Sandeep Jain
and Mr. Sanjeev Jain) and Ruby QC Investments Pte. Limiled (“the Investor”) wherein 125,585 fully paid equity shares were issued by the
Company and 70,642 equity shares were transferred by the said shareholders directly to the Investor for a total consideration of  5,000.00
million giving the Invesiors 15.09% stake in the Company.

As per the Agreement, in the event of liquidalion of the Company, the equity shares held by the Investor will have preferential right on the
liquidation proceeds so available to the Company over other shareholder. Also refer note 18.1.

15.3 Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company and shares held by promoters*

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Name of shareholder -
No. of shares % Holding No. of shares % Holding
Sanjeev Jain® 60,692,940 42.42 30,346,470 42.42
Sandeep Jain* 60,728,690 42.45 30,364,345 42.45
Ruby QC Investment Holding Pte Ltd. 21,584,970 15.09 10,792,485 15.09

# promolers of the Company. There has been no change in the shareholding ratio of the promoters. Further, the change in shares held is due
to bonus issue in the current year.

*As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding
beneficial interest, the above sharehoiding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

16.4 No shares, except below have been issued as bonus shares or issued for consideralion other than cash or bought back during the
period of five years immedialely preceding the reporting date.

Particulars No of shares

Shares issued as bonus shares in 2021-22 65,029,250
Additonal shares issued on account of share split 5,202,340
Shares issued as bonus shares in 2022-23 71,532,175

15.6 The Company vide board resolution dated 16 March 2022 and shareholder resolution dated 31 March 2022 has approved the Employee
Stock Oplion Scheme 2022 and autharised to create, grant, offer, issue and allot 10,72,983 employee stock options under Emioyee Stock
Oplion Scheme 2022, for the benefit of employees and directors of the Company as decided by the board. The number of shares post bonus
issue done in financial year ended 31 March 2023, have resulted in increase of Employee Stock Options from 10,72,983 options to 21,45,966
options. Pending the number of options granted, no adjustment has been recorded in these standalone financial statements.




Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited

CIN - U24239DL2004PLC125888

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in Z million unless otherwise stated)

. As at As at
Particulars 31March 2023 31 March 2022
16. Other equity
(a) Securities premium

Balance as at beginning of the year - 11.25

Less: Utilisation on account of bonus issue - (11.25)

Balance as at end of the year - -
(b) Retained earnings

Balance as per last financial statements 3,513.55 7,447 45

Add: Profit/ (loss) for the year 1,254.30 (3,817.75)

Add: Other comprehensive income for the year

- Remesurement of defined benefit plans 5.36 2.66

Less: Utilisation on account of bonus issue (143.06) (118.81)

Balance as at end of the year 4,630.15 3,513.55
(c) Put option reserve

Balance as at beginning/ end of the year (1,801.24) (1,801.24)

Total 2,828.91 1,712.31

Nature of reserves
The description of nature and purpose of each of the above reserve within equity is as under:

1.Securities premium

Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes such as issuance
of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

2.Retained earnings

The retained earnings represents the undistributed surplus of the Company eamed from its business operations and includes other
comprehensive income generated on remeasurement of defined benefit plan.

3. Put option reserve
Refer note 18.1 for further details.

17. Borrowings

Term loans
Secured
From bank
Loan from bank (refer note 17.1) 250.00 -
250.00 -
Less: Current maturities of long term borrowings (refer note 21) (31.25) -
218.75 -
Notes:
Details of the security and repayment terms of the above borrowings (including current maturities)
Amount outstanding as at
As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

17.1 Term loans - Secured- From bank

Term loan taken from HSBC Bank Limited

Carries an inlerest rate of 6.51% p.a. linked with 1 month T-Bill (31 March 2022: Not applicable) are 250.00 -
secured by way of mortgage/ hypothecation (pari passu) on immovable assets of Haridwar unit and

movable assels of the Company, both present and future. The loan is repayable in quarterly

installments of ¥ 15.63 million each till August 2027; slarting from November 2023.

250.00 -

a) Refer nole 39 for assels pledged as security

b) The above loans have been utilised as per the purpose for these loans were sanctioned

c) The property on which mortgaged or any charged created during the financial year has been duly registered with Registrar of companies.

d) Refer note 45 for disclosure of fair values in respect of financial liabilties measured at amortised cost and analysis of the maturity profile.

€) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of interest during the current financial year. Further, there have been no default in repayment
of loan and no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current year.

\\5_ | j) ' ﬁ’/




Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited

CIN - U24239DL2004PLC125888

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Al amounts in ¥ million unless otherwise stated)

: As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
18. Other financial liabilities
Put option liability (refer note 18.1 and 45) 10,076.04 10,515.74
Security deposit received

from customers 29.28 26.98
from others 47.57 6.73
10,152.89 10,549.45

18.1 Pursuant to the Agreement described in note 15.2, the Inveslor has a right to exarcise an oplion (“put option”) after 54 months from 3
October 2019 to require the Company to buyback its equity shares at fair market value at the date of exercise of the put option, in case the
Company is not able to give exit to the Investor through an ‘initial public offer’ or a secondary sale to a third party.

The put option is considered to be contractual obligation of the Company to deliver cash and accordingly the entire amount of ¥ 5,000.00
million paid by the Investor has been recognised as a financial liability at fair value in accordance with Ind AS 109 - Financial instruments and
presented above as “put option liability”.

The put option liability represents the fair value of the contractual obligation of the Company and includes amounts payable in respect of
shares {ransferred directly from the said shareholders to the Investor amounting to ¥ 1,799.99 million and the face value of the equity shares
directly issued to the Investor by the Company amounting to ¥ 1.26 million with a corresponding adjustment of  1,801.24 million to “other
equity” as a “put oplion reserve”. Further, the decrease in the put option liability on its subsequent re-measurement at fair value at the
balance sheet date amounting to % 439.70 million (31 March 2022: increased by % 4,941.74 million) is disclosed seperalely in the standalone
statement of profit and loss.

19. Provisions

(a) Provision for employee benefits

Gratuity (refer note 38) 66.93 62.29
Compensated absences 15.14 18.98
82.07 81.27

20. Deferred tax liabilities (net) L

In accordance with Ind AS 12 "Income Tax", the Company has accounted for deferred taxes.

Deferred tax liabilities consists of:

Temporary differences of book and tax depreciation 268.11 205.87
Deferred tax assets consists of:

Items that are tax deductible on payment basis 24.51 23.41
Lease liabilities 70.40 3.64
Provision for expected credit loss 15.15 6.78
Provision for sales tax - 4410
Provision for dimunition in value of intangible assets 175.55 -
Provision for demand raised by statutory authorities 13.84 -
Deferred tax liabilities (net) (31.34) 127.94

Refer note 46 for movement of tax

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited

CIN - U24239DL2004PLC125888

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in ¥ million unless otherwise stated)

Particul As at As at
argctliars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
21. Borrowings
Secured
Loan repayable on demand (from bank)
Working capital loan (including interest accrued) (refer note a to e) 1,205.85 1,222.16
Current maturities of non-current borrowings (refer note 17) 31.25 -
1,237.10 1,222.16
Notes:
Nature of security and repayment terms of the above borrowings are as below:
Amount outstanding as at
As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

(a) Cash credit facility from State Bank of India - 471.53
Cash credit facility received from State Bank of India has been secured by Company's all current

assels(present and future)at Company's head office and hypothecation of stocks,book debts and

fixed & movable assets of the Unit-I,I1,1I1IV & Viequitable mortgage by deposit of title deeds in

repect of land at Haridwar of Unit I,IIIILIV & V and personal guarantee of directors of the

company.The loan is repayable on demand and carries an interest rate of 7.5% p.a. to 8.85% p.a.

(previous year 8.85% p.a.)

(b) Working capital loan from State Bank of India 352.20 -
Working capilal Loan from Stale Bank of India is secured by Company's all current assets(present

and future)at Company's head office and hypothecation of stocks,book debls and fixed & movable

assels of the Unit-1,ILIILIV & Viequitable mortgage by deposit of titlte deeds in repect of land at

Haridwar of Unit II1,IILIV & V and personal guarantee of directors of the company and carrries an

interest rate in the range of 6.60% p.a. to 7.50% p.a. (previous year: not applicable) and is

repayable after minimum 7 days to maximum 180 days of utilisation of facility.

(c) Working capital loan from HDFC Bank 521.63 450.61
Working capital loan from Hdfc Bank Limited is secured by hypothecation/ morigage of stocks,book
debls and fixed and movable assets of Units LILHL, IV & V, equitable mortgage by deposits of title

deeds in respect of land at haridwar and carrries an interest rate in the range of 4.30% p.a. to 7.80%
p.a. (previous year: 4.0% p.a. 4.30% p.a.) and is repayable after minimum 7 days to maximum 180
days of utilisation of facility.

(d) Working capital loan from Yes Bank 332.02 200.66
Working capital Loan from Yes Bank Limited is secured by hypothecation/ mortgage of stocks, book
debts and fixed and movable assets of unit LI,III,IV & V: equitable mortgage by deposits of title

deeds in respect of land at haridwar. The loan is repayable on demand and carries an interest rate
in the range of 4.00%p.a to 7.30% p.a (previous year: 4.0% p.a. o 4.30% p.a.) and is repayable
after minimum 7 days to maximum 180 days of utilisation of facility.

(e) Cash credit facility from CITI Bank Limited - 99.36
Cash credit facility from CITI Bank Limited is secured by hypothecalion/mortgage of stocks,book
debls and fixed and movable assels of unit 1,111V & V: equitable mortgage by deposits of title

deeds in respect of land at haridwar and carrries an inlerest rate in the range of 7.95% p.a. to 9.5%
p.a. (previous year: 7.95% p.a. to 9.5% p.a.)

1,205.85 1,222.16

The above loans have been utilised as per the purpose for these loans were sanctioned

a) Refer note 39 for assets pledged against borrowing facilities

b) Refer note 45 for disclosure of fair values in respect of financial liabilties measured at amortised cost and analysis of the maturity profile.

c) Refer note 41 for note on submission of quarterly statements to the bank and its reconciliation with the amounis appearing in the books of
accounts.

d) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of interest during the current financial year. Further, there have been no default in repayment
of loan and no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current year.

€) The above loans have been utilised as per the purpose for these loans were sanctioned
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. As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
22. Trade payables

Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises (refer note 52): and 143.89 96.25
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 1,635.83 2,424 .90
1,779.72 2,521.15

Dues to related parties (refer to note 42) 318.14 1,267.37

Refer note 45 for disclosure of fair values in respect of financial liabilties measured at amortised cost and analysis of the maturity profile
Refer note 50(b) for disclosure in respect of ageing of the above payables.

23. Other financial liabilities

Employee payables 97.06 81.09

Payable for property, plant and equipment* 59.18 13.32

Book overdraft 813.85 -
970.09 94.41

* includes dues to micro and small enterprises of ¥ 24.64 million (31 March 2022: ¥ 3.75 million)
Refer note 45 for disclosure of fair values in respect of financial liabilfies measured at amortised cost and analysis of the maturity profile

24. Other current liabilities

Advance from customers 878.16 1,307.24

Other payables
Statutory dues 25.60 21.39
903.76 1,328.63

25. Provisions

Provision for employee benefits

Gratuity (refer note 38) 1.56 1.79
Compensaled absences 0.91 1.38
Provision for sales tax (refer note 35(b)) - 175.23

Provision for demand raised by statutory authorities™ 55.00 -
57.47 178.40

*The Company has during the year received demand letters in respect of shortfall in meeting the export obligation by the Company against
the EPCG licence availed earlier. The management is contesting the demand and have filed requisite documents. However, based on the
merils of the case and discussion with the legal counsel, an amount of  55.00 million (previous year - Rs. Nil) has been provided by the
Company in these standalone financial statements.

Note:
Movement of other provisions (including sales tax and demand raised by statutory authorities) in accordance with Ind AS 37

Opening provisions 175.23 175.23
Add: Provision made during the year 55.00 -
Less: Provision reversed during the year (refer note 35(b)) (175.23) -
Closing provisions 55.00 175.23

\ (This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts in ¥ million unless otherwise staled)

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2023

Year ended
31 March 2022

26. Revenue from operations

Sale of finished products
Sale of other products

Other operating revenues
Job work income
Testing charges and others
Sale of scraps

Refer note 43 in terms of disclosures required under Ind AS 115

27. Other income

Interest income on:
fixed deposits carried at amortised cost
loans given to related parties (refer note 42)
Others
Share of profit from investment in LLP and partnership firm
Foreign currency translations
Rental income
Income from government grants/ subsidy
Liabilities no longer required, written back
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment
Gain on reassessment of right of use assets
Reversal of expected credit loss on trade receivables
Miscellaneous income

28. Change in inventory of finished goods and work-in-progress

Opening stock
Finished goods
Work-in-progress

Less: Closing stock
Finished goods
Work-in-progress

Change in inventory of finished goods and work-in-progress (A-B)

29. Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus
Contributions to provident and other funds*
Staff welfare expenses

10,668.62 10,762.37
510.56 363.41
11,179.18 11,125.78
209.03 319.39
1,413.76 111.93
66.29 63.51
12,868.26 11,620.61
4.48 4.52
595.33 428.92
17.66 0.42
51.80 71.35
. 7.25
42.65 20.98
1.43 0.98
173.68 1.92
46.37 0.07
- 9.81
2 10.00
28.13 28.54
961.53 584.76
174.29 109.99
201.81 81.58
() 376.10 191,57
260.59 174.29
146.06 201.81
(B) 406.65 376.10

(30.55) (184.53)
1,378.83 1,287.33
47.46 41.59
46.68 34.77
1,472.97 1,363.69

*includes PF & ESIC contribution of ¥ 45.29 million (31 March 2022: ¥ 41.59 million). Refer note 38 for delails

e W
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(All amounts in ¥ miltion unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2023

Year ended
31 March 2022

30. Other expenses

Consumption of stores and spare parts
Job charges paid
Power and fuel
Rent (refer note 54)
Repairs and maintenance
Plant and equipments
Buildings
Others
Travelling expense
Vehicle running expense
Fees and subscription
Legal and professional expenses
Payment to auditors (refer note 37)
Bad debts written off
Provision for expected credit loss on trade receivables
Provision for expected credit loss on advance to suppliers
Commission on sales
Selling and distribution expenses
Loss on foreign exchange transactions and translations, net
Provision for demand raised by statutory authorities
Miscellaneous expenses

31. Finance costs

Interest
on borrowings
on lease liability
on late payment of statutory dues

32. Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of right-of-use assets (refer note 54)
Depreciation on investment property (refer note 3)
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 4)

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

168.93 153.04
231.81 234.27
420.36 362.48
18.24 10.21
96.56 97.37
28.28 22.87
126.64 108.41
2517 10.09
7.60 5.80
41.32 17.84
120.73 108.55
4.00 2.69
8.19 0.60
5.43 -
36.00 -
6.19 12.39
26.81 10.79
3.24 -
55.00 -
104.15 97.60
1,534.65 1,255.00
106.33 21.18
25.43 15.32
- 0.03
131.76 36.53
261.76 242.24
271 22.95
4.41 5.13
6.75 7.31
300.03 277.63
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33 Exceptional items

Partiialais Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Diminution in the value of investment in subsidiaries (refer note (a) below) 30.64 -
Loans written off (refer note (b) below) 710.00 -
Impairment of intangible assets under development (refer note (c) below) 697.50 -
Loss on disposal of investment in subsidiaries (refer note (d) below) 7.19 -
1,445.33 -

Notes:

(a) During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company has made an assessment of the recoverable value of investment in its subsidiary taking into account
the past business performance, prevailing business conditions and revised expectations of the future performancs. Basis the present performance and
business expectalions, the management believes that impairment loss of Rs. 30.64 million to be provided for in the books of accounts and accerdingly
have been disclosed under exceptional items as per applicable Ind AS.

(b) The Company, in earlier years, had granted loan of ¥ 410.00 million and ¥ 300.00 million to its subsidiary company 'Sarvagunaushdhi Private Limited' and
'Nichotas Healthcare Limited' respeclively which were engaged in trading of pharmaceutical products. The companies incurred huge losses from its
operations and significant reduction in net worth over the years. Pursuant to which, management has conducted a detailed testing for recoverablity of the
loan so given and decided to impair the outstanding loan. Accordingly, ¥ 710.00 million for the amount of loan given has been written off by the Company in
these standalone financial statements.

(c) The Company in the beginning of the year has purchased ANDA licenses for certain products for  697.50 million. However, management has re-evaluated
the future usage and operational viability of the aforementioned licences basis which these have been decided to be provided for in these standalone
financials stalements.

(d) The Company, in earlier years, had made investment of ¥ 7.25 million in its subsidiary company 'Delcure Lifesciences Limited' which was engaged in
trading of pharmaceutical products. The company incurred huge losses from its operations and not having business activilies from last couple of years.
Pursuant to which, management has conducled a detailed evaluation for recoverablity of the investment and decided to dispose off the investment.
Accordingly, the company incurred impairment loss of ¥ 7.19 million on disposal of investment and have been disciosed under exceptional items as per
applicable Ind AS.

34 Earning per equity share (EPS)

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Profit/ (loss) attributable to equity shareholders (T million) 1,254.30 (3,817.75)
Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year (in nos.)* 143,064,350 143,064,350
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic and diluted EPS (in nos.)* 143,064,350 143,064,350
Nominal value per share (%) 2.00 2.00
Basic and diluted EPS (%) 8.77 (26.69)

* the number of shares oulstanding have been adjusted retrospaclively to give impact of the issuance of bonus shares in accordance with Ind AS 33 -
Earnings per share.

35 Contingent liabilities

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(i) Liabililies under export scheme (refer note (a) below) - 4,28
(i) Demand raised by sales tax authorities (refer note (b) below) - 166.69
(iii) Corporate guarantee given (refer note (c) below) 1,849.57 303.40
(iv) Income tax matters (refer note (d) below) 28.85 17.70
(v) Others (refer note (e) below) 0.33 0.33

Notes:

(a) The Company had saved ¥ 4.28 million as custom duty payable on import purchase of capital goods under the Export Promation Capital Goods ("EPCG")
scheme of the Government of India. The Company has undertaken an export obligation of ¥ 25.69 million against import of capital goods by paying
concessional rate of custom duty under EPCG scheme. If the Company is unable to meet this export obligation within six years from issue of authorization
letters, i.e., on or before 11 February 2022, the Company was liable to deposit the duty saved amount along with interest for the period. The Company had
already fulfilled its export obligation under EPCG scheme. However, it is in the process of obtaining discharge certificate of its obligation under EPCG
scheme. In the current year, the Company has provided ¥ 55.00 million (previous year: nil) in these standalone financial statements.

(This space has been intentionally left biank)
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(b) Pursuant to the Industrial Promotion Policy, 2003, which amongst other benefis, provided a concessional central sales tax (“CST") @1% to new industries

(©

(e)

set up in the state of Uttarakhand, the Company commenced manufacturing at its factory units at Haridwar.

Until 30 June 2013, the unit | of the Company availed concessional CST of 1% in terms of the relevant nolifications of the sales tax department. However,
during FY 2012-13, the sales tax department, after making provisional assessment for period 1 April 2011 to 31 December 2012, issued a notice to the
Company disallowing the concessional CST of 1% due to non-fulfillment of certain conditions as stipulated in the said nolification and raised a demand
amounting to  88.78 million for differential CST @1%. The Company contested the aforementioned assessment order before the Joint Commissioner
(Appeals), Dehradun, Uttarakhand and the Commercial Tax Tribunal, Uttarakhand. As no relief was granted fo the Company in the aforesaid proceedings,
the Company filed an appeal before the Hon'ble High Court, Uttarakhand on 19 August 2013, which admitted the appeal and granted a stay against the
demands for the period from April 2010 to June 2013 raised by the sales-tax department, till the final order by the High Court.

Further, the sales tax department made final assessments from 1 April 2010 to 31 March 2014 raising a demand of ¥ 160.62 million (excluding interest
demanded at the rate of 15% per annum), which had been contested by the Company and had been stayed by the Hon'ble High Court, Uttrakhand. The
Company had deposited Z 51.31 million under protest against the said demands. The Company, as a matter of prudence, in earlier years had provided an
amount of ¥ 175.23 million (including interest of Rs. 28.32 million) for the period March 2010 to March 2013. The management had ciassified the balance
demand of ¥ 13.70 million and also interest of ¥ 152.99 million (calculated at 15% per annum for the period 01 April 2013 to 31 March 2022) as a
contingent liability.

During the current year, Hon'ble High Court, Uttrakhand passed an order, whereby the previous assessment orders issued by relevant authorities were put
aside and committes for determination of tofal capital investment by the Company has been ordered to be formed which would be issuing a fresh
assessment order basis their evaluation. Considering that all the previous assessment order has been put aside by the Hon'ble High Court, Uttrakhand, the
provision as well as contingent liability earlier created for the previously raised assessment orders (presently put asids) has been reversed by the
Company.

Corporate guarantees given represents guarantees given to banks for the loans taken by subsidiary companies. (refer note 53)

Pursuant to the assessment of certain previous years (AY 2017-18, AY 2018-19 and AY 2020-21), department has raised demands of Z 28.85 million (31
March 2022:  17.70 million) on account of: )

AY 2017-18: Disallowance of deduction u/s 80IC and 35(2AB) of Income Tax Act, 1961 amounting to ¥ 11.51 million.

AY 2018-19: Disallowance of deduction ufs 35(2AB) and 37(1) of Income Tax Act, 1961 amounting to  6.26 million.

AY 2020-21: Initiation of penalty proceeding u/s 270 A of Income Tax Act, 1961 amounting to ¥ 11.09 million.

The matter is pending at CIT (Appeal) level and based on the assessments by the management, consideration of merits of the case and external legal
advice, the Company believes that there is a fair chance of winning the case. Accordingly, no further provisions, if any, are considered necessary to be
recorded in these standalone financial statements.

One of the vendor had filed a legal suit against the Company in respect of unpaid amount for the material supplied to the Company. The amount of claim
filed amounts to  0.33 million (2020:  0.33 million). However, based on discussions with the solicitors, the management believes that the Company has a
likely chance of a favorable outcome and accordingly no provision, if any, has been considered necessary to be recorded in the books of accounts.

(f) Pursuant to judgement by the Hon'ble Supreme Court of India dated 28 February, 2019, it was held that basic wages, for the purpose of provident fund,
should include certain allowances which are common for all employees. The company has assessed possible outcomes of the judgement based on
discussions with internal counsel and believes that the ruling would be applicable prospectively and accordingly the management has not provided for
liability arising, if any for the past periods. Furlher, the management believes that it is compliant, in all material aspects, with all the relevant statutory
requirement for the current year. Accordingly, the Company believes that this matter will not have any material adverse impact on the financial position of
the Company. The Company will, however, continue to monitor and evaluate its position based on future events and developments.

36 Capital and other commitments
Particul Year ended Year ended

LS 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Eslimaled amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net of advances) 113.38 49.08

37 Payment to auditor
eul Year ended Year ended

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(a) as auditor 3.50 2.50
(b) for reimbursement of expenses 0.50 0.19
4.00 2.69

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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38 Employees benefits
A Defined contribution plan

The amount recognised as expense towards contribution to defined contribution plans for the year is as
below:

Company's contribution to Provident Fund

Company's contribution to Employees' State Insurance Scheme

Total

B Defined benefit plan - Gratuity

(i) Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the end of the year

Non-current
Current

(i) Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet

Present value of the obligation as at the beginning of the year
Service cost

Interest cost

Benefils paid

Actuarial gain recognised during the year in other comprehensive income
Present value of the obligation as at end of the year

(iii) Expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss consists of:

Current Service cost

Interest cost

Net impact on profit before tax

Actuarial (loss) recognised during the year in other comprehensive income
Amount recognised in total comprehensive income

(iv) Breakup of actuarial gain/(loss):

Actuarial gain/ (loss) from change in demographic assumption
Actuarial gain/ (loss) from change in financial assumption
Actuarial gain/ (loss) from experience adjustment

Tolal actuarial gain/ (loss)

(v) Change in fair value of plan assets

Year ended
31 March 2023

Year ended
31 March 2022

42.60 38.95
269 2.64
45.29 41.59
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
66.93 62.29
1.56 1.79
68.49 64.08
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
64.08 58.61
11.02 10.45
4.59 3.98
(4.04) (5.41)
(7.16) (3.55)
68.49 64.08
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

11.02 10.45
4.59 3.98
15.61 14.43
(7.16) (3.55)
8.45 10.88
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

There are no plan assets against the aforesaid liability. Therefore, the return of change in fair value of plan assets is not given.

(vi) Actuarial assumptions

Discount rate (per annum)
Future salary increase (per annum)
Withdrawal rale
Up to 30 Years
From 31 to 44 years
Above 44 years
Relirement age
Mortality rate

Average future service (in years)
Notes:

- 1.54 3.12
562 0.42
7.16 3.54
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

7.36%
5.50%

3.00%
2.00%
1.00%

58 years
100% of IALM
(2012-14)
23.41 years

7.18%
5.50%

3.00%
2.00%
1.00%

58 years
100% of IALM
(2012-14)
23.40 years

- The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yield of Indian Government bonds as at the balance sheet date for the estimaled terms of obligations.

- The estimates of future saiary increases considered takes into account the infiation, seniority, §romotion and other relevant factors.
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Employees benefits (cont'd)

(vii) Sensitivity analysis for gratuity liability

Impact of change in discount rate

« Present value of obligation at the end of the year
- Impact due to increase of 0.5 %
- Impact due to decrease of 0.5 %

Impact of change in salary increase

Present value of obligation at the end of the year
- Impact due fo increase of 0.5 %

- Impact due to decrease of 0.5 %

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

68.49
(4.12)
4.50

68.49
448
(4.13)

64.08
(3.76)
411

64.08
4.01
(3.75)

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change an assumption while hoiding all other assumptions canstant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur and
changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial
assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting
period) has been applied which was applied while calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the balance sheet.

(vii) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation (undiscounted) As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Within next 12 months 1.56 1.79
Between 1-5 years 9.98 13.37
Beyond 5 years 56.95 48,92
68.49 64.08
(viii) Expected contribution

(ix)

The expected future empioyer contributions for defined benefit pian ¥ 18.32 million as at 31 March 2023 (31 March 2022 : ¥ 17.61 million).

Other long-term employee benefits
An amount of ¥ (1.39 million) (31 March 2022 : ¥ 4.13 million) pertains to (reversal)/ expense towards compensated absences.

39 Assets pledged as security (refer note 17 and 21)
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Current
Inventories 1,937.63 1,771.23
Cash and cash equivalents 34.18 120.19
Other bank balances 2.50 2.50
Other financial assets 34.11 93.97
Ofther current assets 269.64 258.91
Trade receivables 2,539.65 2,927.85
Total current assets pledged as security 4,817.71 5,174.65
Non-current
Property, piant and equipment 1,513.63 1,576.69
Capital work-in-progress 74,76 533
Total assets pledged as security 6,406.10 6,756.67

40 Property on which mortgaged or any charged created during the financial year has been duly registered with Registrar of companies.

41 Reporting to banks/ financial institutions

The Company is regular in submission of quarterly stock statements with banks for the borrowings sanctioned against hypothecation of current assets.
Further, all the quarlerly statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks or financial insfitutions are in agreement with books of accounts.

(This space has been intentionally left biank)
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42

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Related party disclosures

In accordance with Ind AS-24 on related party disclosures where control exist and where transactions in ordinary course of business have taken place and
description of the refalionships as identified and cerlified by the management are as follows:

Relationships

Name of entity

Principal place of
business of investee

Shareholding as at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Members of the same group
Subsidiaries
Akumentis Healthcare Limited
Akums Healthcare Limited
Akums Lifesciences Limited
Amazing Research Laboratories Limited
AVHA Lifesciences Private Limited (till 28 February 2023)
Delcure Lifesciences Limited (till 18 January 2023)
Maxcure Nutravedics Limited
Malik Lifesciences Private Limited
May and Baker Pharmaceuticals Limited
Nicholas Healthcare Limited
Plenteous Pharmaceuticals Limited
Pure and Cure Healthcare Private Limited
Sarvagunaushdhi Private Limited
Unosource Pharma Limited
Akumn Impex LLP (till 30 September 2022)
Upadhrish Reserchem LLP
Burroughs Welcome Pharmacia Private Limited (w.e.f. 30 Seplember 2021)
Step down subsidiary of Company
Medibox Digital Solutions Private Limited
Cure Sure Pharma (Dissolved on 31 March 2022)
Parabolic Research Labs Limited (till 17 March 2023)**
Ziven Lifesciences Limited (till 17 March 2023)**
Dhanwantri Vedaresearch LLP (till 30 September 2022)
Associate of the Company
AUSL Pharma (till 31 December 2022)

Key management personnel (KMP)

Name

Mr. Sandeep Jain

Mr. Sanjeev Jain

Mr. Basant Kumar Singh

Mr. Deepak Gurudas Haldankar
Mr. Nand Lal Kalra

Ms. Neena Vivek

Mr. Kewal Handa

Ms. Matangi Gowrishankar
Mr. Amit Varma

Mr. Dharamvir Malik

Mr. Sumeet Sood

Mr. Vinod Raheja

# as per Companies Act, 2013

Relatives of KMP*
Ms. Arushi Jain
Mr. D.C. Jain

Entities where significant influence is exercised by KMP and/or their relatives having transactions with the Company*

India
India
India
India
India
India
India
India
India
India
India
India
India
India
India
India
India

India
India
India
India
India

India

Designation
Whole Time Director
Whoie Time Director

91.50%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

99.93%

99.93%

100.00%

Whole Time Director (from 16 March 2022)
Whole Time Director (till 31 March 2022)

Independent Director

Independent Director (till 15 April 2022)
Independent Director (from 16 March 2022)
Independent Direcotr (from 16 March 2022)

Nominee Director
Company Secrelary#

Chief Financial Officer# (from 14 February 2022)

Chief Financial Officer# (till 4 January 2022)

Akome Lifecare Private Limited [formerly Sanjain Lifecare Private Limited (from 11 February 2022)]

Akums Foundation

Akums Health and Education Society

German Remedies Lifesciences Limited

American Remedies Lifesciences Limiled

Dhanwantri Vedaresearch LLP (from 1 October 2022)

* where transactions have occurred

** the companies have been struck off from the register of compnies vide public notice dated 17 March 2023

N

W

91.50%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

99.89%

99.98%

90.92%

99.92%

100.00%
91.50%
100.00%
100.00%
90.00%

40.00%
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Il Summary of related party transactions-

Particulars

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

(@

Transactions during the year

Inter-corporate loan given

Pure and Cure Healthcare Privale Limited
Maxcure Nutravedics Limited

Akums Lifesciences Limited

Malik Lifesciences Private Limited

Others

Inter-corporate loan repaid

Pure and Cure Healthcare Private Limited
Maxcure Nutravedics Limited

Malik Lifesciences Private Limited

Akums Lifesciences Limited

Others

Loan written off

Nicholas Healthcare Limited
Sarvagunaushdhi Private Limited
Delcure Lifesciences Limited

Interest received

Akums Lifesciences Limiled
Malik Lifesciences Private Limited
Unosource Pharma Limited
Maxcure Nutravedics Limited
Others

Sale of goods and others

Unosource Pharma Limited

Akumenlis Healthcare Limited

Plenteous Pharmaceuticals Limited

Pure and Cure Healthcare Private Limited
Nicholas Healthcare Limited

Others

Sale of property, plant and equipments
Pure and Cure Healthcare Private Limited
Akums Healthcare Limited

Upadhrish Reserchem LLP

Malik Lifesciences Private Limited

Akums Lifesciences Limited

Others

Sale of MEIS License
Maxcure Nutravedics Limited
Malik Lifesciences Private Limited

Purchase of goods and others
Maxcure Nutravedics Limited

Pure and Cure Healthcare Private Limited
Malik Lifesciences Privale Limited

Others

6,038.00
5,538.18
4,211.00
3,679.00
1,005.16

4,082.45
6,230.50
3,513.00
2,920.97
2,088.20

300.00
410.00

222.07
65.60
48.21
56.00

203.09

551.32
228.63

137.77-

405.68
21.30
215.63

5.53
5.14
2.44
0.60
0.04
0.66

968.18
491.94
279.65
214.97

4,713.45
4,026.33
3,129.76
2,779.00
2,222.46

5,562.00
3,380.50
2,615.50
1,019.90

992.87

1,523.48

95.24
65.64
57.40
45.40
165.23

389.46
354.07
273.84
232.12
168.26
236.85

9.59
0.62

4.27
1.77

4.20
0.73

1,204.44
555.46
259.01
105.67




Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in ¥ million unless otherwise stated)

Il Summary of related party transactions-

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Purchase of assets
Pure and Cure Healthcare Private Limited 9.10 2.79
Upadhrish Reserchem LLP 1.81 -

Purchase of MEIS License Fees
Unosource Pharma Limited - 4.20

Expenses Incurred
Sarvagunaushdhi Private Limited 0.26 0.36
Plenteous Pharmaceuticals Limited - 0.01

Selling and distribution expenses
Medibox Digital Solutions Private Limited - 5.00

Repairs and maintenance- Plant and equipments
Upadhrish Reserchem LLP 12.94 8.14

Consumption of stores and spare parts
Upadhrish Reserchem LLP 3524 38.07

Job work charges

Pure and Cure Healthcare Privale Limited 181.68 189.14
Malik Lifesciences Private Limited 49.37 4513
Others 0.76 -
Expenses paid by other group company

Akums Healthcare Limited 1.54 -
Pure and Cure Healthcare Private Limited 1.33 1.20
Others 0.37 0.02

Service Income

Unosource Pharma Limited 31.65 3.1
Maxcure Nutravedics Limited 0.01 6.01
Others 2.1 0.34
Expenses incurred on behalf of Company

Akums Lifesciences Limited 10.45 241.68
Maxcure Nutravedics Limited 7.32 375.37
Malik Lifesciences Privale Limited 11.86 65.75
Pure and Cure Healthcare Privale Limited 44.21 28.23
Others 29.00 88.22

Job work Income

Pure and Cure Heslthcare Private Limited 4.33 0.94
Unosource Pharma Limited 0.05 -
Rent received

Malik Lifesciences Private Limited 18.01 14.22
Maxcuire Nutravedics Limited 8.65 4.86
Akums Lifesciences Limited 8.40 -
Pure and Cure Healthcare Private Limited 7.58 1.90
Others 9.43 8.98




Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in T million unless otherwise stated)

Il Summary of related party transactions-

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Corporate guarantee given/ (withdrawn)

Akums Lifesciences Limited 1,400.00 150.00
Delcure Lifesciences Limited = (100.00)
May and baker Pharmaceuticals Limited (41.91) -
Plenleous Pharmaceuticals Limited 14.56 -
Amazing Research Laboratories Limited (6.48) 33.40
Unasource Pharma Limited 180.00 -
Corporate guarantee charges

Akums Lifesciences Limited 7.92 3.50
Others 1.07 0.77
Profit/ (loss) share from investment in Partnership firm/ LLP

AUSL Pharma (2.03) 2.03
Upadhrish Reserchem LLP 53.83 €9.32
Investment through acquisition of shares

Burroughs Weicome Pharmacia Private Limited - 0.01
Sale of investment in subsidiaries

Dhanwantri Vedaresearch LLP 0.16 -
Remuneration paid*

Mr. Sanjeev Jain 38.00 33.50
Mr. Sandeep Jain 38.00 33.50
Mr. Basant Kumar Singh 3.49 0.20
Mr. Deepak Haldankar - 9.65
Mr. Vinod Raheja - 14.13
Mr. Sumeet Sood 13.23 1.66
Mr. Dharamvir Malik 2.09 2.08
Ms. Arushi Jain 6.30 -
Rent paid

Akome Lifecare Private Limiled 12.48 -
Akums Healthcare Limited 8.43 0.53
Mr. Sanjesv Jain 3.84 3.84
Mr. Sandeep Jain 4.80 4.80
Others 0.36 0.30
Sitting fees

Mr. Kewal Handa 2.40 0.08
Ms. Matangi Gowrishankar 2.20 -
Mr. Nand Lal Kaira 0.44 0.19
Ms. Neena Vivek - 0.18
Professional charges

Mr. D.C. Jain 1.80 1.80

* Excluding the post employment benefits as it is computed for the Company as a whole.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in  million unfess otherwise stated)

Il Summary of related party transactions-

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

(b) [Balance outstanding at the year end

Inter-corporate loan

Akums Lifesciences Limited 3,838.00 2,647.97
Malik Lifesciences Private Limited 1,369.00 1,203.00
Pure and Cure Healthcare Private Limited 1,963.00 7.45
Unosource Pharma Limited 520.00 710.00
Others 1,305.60 3,610.97
Trade receivable

Akums Lifesciences Limited 498 122.72
Unosource Pharma Limited 168.01 122.90
Sarvagunaushdhi Private Limited 72.34 29.49
Pure and Cure Healthcare Privale Limited 130.84 1.55
Others 89.50 08.37
Interest receivable

Akums Lifesciences Limited 21.66 12.26
Pure and Cure Healthcare Privale Limited 11.82 -
Malik Lifesciences Private Limited 6.87 6.64
Sarvagunaushdhi Private Limited 6.44 0.01
Unosource Pharma Limiled 2.98 3.82
Maxcure Nutravedics Limited 1.03 3.47
Akums Healthcare Limited 0.95 3.79
Others 1.59 5.41
Trade payable

Malik Lifesciences Privale Limited 23.55 71.11
Maxcure Nutravedics Limited 217.17 929.19
Pure and Cure Healthcare Private Limited 18.40 266.11
Akums Lifesciences Limited 56.99" -
Others 2.03 0.97
Security deposit received

Amazing Research Laboratories Limited 1.74 1.74
May and baker Pharmaceuticals Limited 0.95 0.95
Plenteous Pharmaceuticals Limited 0.78 0.78
Sarvagunaushdhi Private Limited 0.60 0.60
Dues from partnership firm and LLPs

Upadhrish Reserchem LLP 53.83 69.32
AUSL Pharma - 2.03
Other payable

Maxcure Nutravedics Limited - 0.02

Corporate guarantee™

Akums Lifesciences Limited 1,550.00 150.00
Unosource Pharma Limited 180.00 -

Plenteous Pharmaceuticals Limited 64.56 50.00
Amazing Research Laboratories Limited 46.92 53.40
May and baker Pharmaceuticals Limiled 8.09 50.00

*represents corporale guarantee given fo subsidiaries for the loan taken by them. The guarantee given has been restricted to
the amount of loan oufstanding as on the closing date.

#Apart from the above transactions the Company has taken personal guarantse amounting to ¥ 352.20 million (31 March 2022:
F 471.53 million) from directors for the loans availed by the Company.
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Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited
CIN - U24239DL2004PLC125888

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts in  million unless otherwise stated)
43 Disclosure required under Ind AS 115 - Revenue from customers

(i) Disaggregation of revenue:

Sale of products

Revenue from sale of manufactured goods
Revenue from sale of goods - others
Other operating revenue

Job work charges

Testing charges and others

Sale of scrap

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
10,668.62 10,762.37
510.56 363.41
209.03 319.39
1,413.76 111.93
66.29 63.51
12,868.26 11,620.61

(ii) Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

Non-current Current

Non-current Current

Contract liabilities related to sale of goods

Advance received from customers - 878.16 - 1,307.24

Receivable is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. Contract liability is the entity's
obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the entity has received consideration from the customer in advance.

(i) Significant changes in the contract liabilities balances during the year are as follows:
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Particulars Contract liabilities Contract liabilities
Advances from customers Advances from customers
Opening balance 1,307.24 2569
Addition during the 878.16 1,307.24
Revenue recognised during the year 1,307.24 25.69
Closing balance 878.16 1,307.24

The Company does not have any remaining performance obligation as contracts entered for sale of goods are for a shorter
duration. There are no contracts for sale of services wherein, performance obligation is unsatisfied to which transaction price has
been allocated. The amounts receivable from customers become due after expiry of credit period which on an average is less than

60 days. There is no significant financing component in any transaction with the customers.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited

CIN - U24239DL2004PLC125888

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in € million uniess otherwise staled)

44 Corporate social responsibility
As per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a Company, meeling the applicable threshoid, required to spend at least 2% of its average net profil for the
immediately preceding three financial year as per section 198 of the Companies Act 2013 on corporate social responsibility(CSR) activities. The CSR committee has
been formed by the Company as per the Act and the Company has identified areas of "Promoting Education and Healthcare and Rural Development projects” for
CSR activities.

The Company has spent amount on corporate social responsibility expenses as below:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Unspent/ (Overspent) balance as at beginning of the year (0.50) -

Gross amount required to be spent during the year - -
Amount spent during the year

- Construction/ acquisition of any asset - -

- On purposes other than above (0.04) 0.50
Unspent/ (Overspent) balance as at year end [(excess)/ shortfall] (0.54) (0.50)

The excess amount spent on CSR during FY 2022-23 has been recognised as an asset in the books of account as per Companies Act 2013 (refer note 14b)

45 Financial instruments
A Financial instruments by category
The accounting classification of each category of financial instruments, and their carrying amounts, are set out below:

Amortised cost
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Financial assets

Trade receivables 2,561.33 3,039.27
Cash and cash equivalenls 72.33 254.88
Other bank balances 16.12 2.50
Loans 9,148.94 8,214.81
Other financial assets 210.70 274.40
Total financial assets 12,009.42 11,785.86

Financial liabilities

Borrowings 1,455.85 1,222,186
Trade payables 1,779.72 2,521.15
Lease liabilities 425.18 180.70
Other financial liabilities 1,046.94 128.12
Finanacial laibilities carried at fair value

Liability arising out of put option 10,076.04 10,515.74
Total financial liabilities 14,783.73 14,567.87

The carrying amount of irade receivables, trade payables, capital creditors and cash and cash equivaient are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to
shart-term in nature.

The carrying value of the amortised financial assets and liabilities approximate to the fair value on the respective reporting dates.

Investments in subsidiaries and associate as at the close of the year ended 31 March 2023 are carried at cost, per the option availed by the Company under the
relevant provision of Ind AS. Hence the same has not been considered in the above table.

B. Fair values hierarchy
The fair value of financial instruments as referred to in note (A) above has been classified inlo three categories depending on the inputs used in the valuation
technique. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to qualed prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities [Level 1 measurements] and lowest priority to
unobservable inputs [Level 3 measurements].

The categories used are as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical instruments in an active market;

Level 2: Directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) observable market inputs, other than Level 1 inputs; and

Level 3: Inputs which are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part using a net asset value or
valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based
on available market data.

~




Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited
CIN - U24239DL2004PLC125888

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts in ¥ million unless otherwise sfalted)

B.1 Financial liabilities measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements

Particulars Period Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit and loss
Liability arising out of put option 31 March 2023 - 10,076.04 10,076.04
31 March 2022 - 10,515.74 10,515.74
B.2 Valuation process and technique used to determine fair value
Specific valualion techniques used to value financial instruments include:
(a) for liability arising on account of put option, adjusted discounted cash flow method (income approach) has been used.
The following table summarises the quantitative information about the significant unobservable inputs used in level 3 fair value measurements.
Particulars Fair value Significant
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 | unobservable
Liability arising out of put option 10,076.04 10,5615.74 Growth rate
B.3 Sensitivity analysis
Description Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
Impact on liability arising on account of put options fair value if change in growth rate
- Impact due to increase of 0.5% (2.20) 24.71
- Impact due to decrease of 0.5% 2.20 (24.71)
B.4 The following table presents the changes in level 3 items for the periods ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022
g Liability arising
Pertculars out of put option
As at 1 April 2021 5,574.00
Add: fair value changes during the year 4,941.74
As at 31 March 2022/ 1 April 2022 10,515.74
Add: fair value changes during the year (439.70
As at 31 March 2023 10,076.04

Financial risk management

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings, lrade payables and other payabies. The main purpese of these financial liabilities is to finance the
Company's operalions. The Company's principal financial assets include loans, investments, trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents and other
financial assets.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's management oversees the management of these risks and also ensure that the
Company's financial risk activiies are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance
with the Company's policies and risk objectives.

The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below:

Financial risk factors

The Company's aclivilies expose it fo a variety of financial risks:

a) Market risk

b) Credit risk

¢) Liquidity risk

The primary market risk to the Company is foreign exchange risk. The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristic of each
customer and the concentration of risk from the top few customers. Liquidily risk is the risk that the company will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet
commilments associaled with financial instruments that are setiied by delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk may result from an inability to sell a
financial asset quickly at close to its fair value.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited
CIN - U24239DL2004PLC125888

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in E million unless otherwise stated)

C.1 Market risk
(a) Foreign currency risk

The enlity has international transactions and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions. Fareign exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the enlity's functional currency. The company does nol use

forward contracts and swaps for managing risks associated with foreign ecurrency nor used for speculative purposes.

Foreign currency risk exposure:

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
UsD million UsD million

Trade receivables 447 494 = =
Trade and other payables 24,273 1,351,800 103.79
Total 471,767 1,351,800 103.79
Sensitivity
The sensilivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency denominated financial instruments.

Particulars Currency 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

INR/USD- increase by 1%* usD 0.33 (1.53) 1.53

(31 March 2022: 1.47% )
* Holding all other variabies constant

(b) Interest rate risk
(i) Financial liabilities

The Company's policy is to minimise interest rale cash flow risk exposures on external financing. At 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022, the Company is exposed fo
changes in interest rates through bank borrowings cairying variable interest rates. The Company's investments in fixed deposits carry fixed interest rates.

Interest rate risk exposture

Below is the overall exposure of the entity to interest rale risk:

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
Variable rate borrowing 1,455.85 1,222.16
Fixed rate borrowing - -
Total borrowings 1,455.85 1,222.16
Sensitivity

_Below is the sensitivity of profit or less and equity changes in inferest rates.

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Interest sensitivity*
Interest rales — increase by 100 basis poinls
Interest rates — decrease by 100 basis points

14.56
{14.56)

12.22
(12.22)

* Hoiding all other vaniables constant

(i) Financial assets

The Company’s deposils with banks are carried at amorlised cost and are fixed rate instruments. They are, therefore, not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind

AS 107, since neilher the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market inlerest rates.

(c) Price risk
(i) Exposure

The Company is in the business of contract manufacturing whwerin any increase in the price is passed to the customer and hence the company is not exposed to

significant preice risk.

Sy
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CIN - U24239DL2004PLC125888

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in ¥ mitlion unless otherwise staled)

C.2 Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty fails to discharge its obligation to the Company. The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by investments in
cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and other financial assets measured at amorlised cost. The Company continuously menilors defaults of customers and
other counterparties and incorporates this information into its credit risk controls.

Credit risk management

The Company assesses and manages credit risk based on internal credit rating system. Intemal credit rating is performed for each class of financial instruments with
different characteristics. The Company assigns the following credit ratings to each class of financial assels based on the assumptions, inputs and factors specific to
the class of financial assets.

(a

(i) Low credit risk

(i) Moderate credit risk

Basad on business environment in which the Company operates, a default on a financial asset is considered when the counter party fails to make payments within
the agreed time period as per contract. Loss rates reflecting defaults are based on actual credit loss experience and considering differences between current and
historical economic conditions.

Assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a deblor declaring bankruptey or a litigation decided against the Company. The
Company conlinues to engage with parties whose balances are wrilten off and attempts to enforce repayment. Recoveries made are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.

The Company provides for expected credit loss based on the following:
Basis of categorisation Asset class exposed to credit risk Provision for expected credit loss

Low credit risk Loans, Cash and cash equivalents, financial assets|12 month expected credit loss
measured at amortised cost

Moderate credit risk Trade receivables Trade receivables - Life time expected credit loss

Financial assets that expose the entity to credit risk -

At at Atat

Particulars 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
Low credit risk

Cash and cash equivalents 7233 254.88
Other bank balances 16.12 2.50
Loans 9,148.94 8,214.81
Other financial assels 210.70 274.40
Moderate credit risk
Trade receivables 2,561.33 3,039.27
Total 12,009.42 11,785.86

Cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits
Credit risk related to cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits is managed by only accepting highly rated banks and diversifying bank deposits and accounts in
different banks across the country.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are generally unsecured and non-interest bearing. There is no significant concentration of credit risk. The Company's credit risk management policy
in relation to trade receivables involves periodically assessing the financial reliability of customers, taking into account their financial position, past experience and
other factors. The utilization of credit limit is regularly monitored and a significant element of credit risk is covered by credit insurance. The Company’s credit risk is
mainly confined to the risk of customers defaulting against credit sales made. Outstanding trade receivables are regularly monitored by credit monitoring Company. In
respect of trade receivables, the Company recognises a provision for lifelime expected credit losses after evalualing the individual probabilities of default of its
customers which are duly based on the inputs received from the marketing teams of the Company.

(This space has been inlentionally left biank)
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Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited
CIN - U24239DL2004PLC125888

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts in ¥ million unless otherwise stafed)
(b) Expected credit losses for financial assets

(i) Financial assets (other than trade receivables)

Company provides for expected credit losses on loans other than trade receivables by assessing individual financial instruments for expectation of any credit losses,
- For cash & cash equivaients and other bank balances - Since the Company deals with only high-rated banks and financial institutions, credit risk in respect of cash
and cash equivalents and other bank baiances and bank deposits is evaluated as very low.
- For loans and other financial assets - Credit risk is evaluated based on Company knowledge of the credit worthiness of those parties and loss allowance is

measured, For such financial assels, the Company policy is to provide for 12 month expected credit losses upon initial recognition and provide for lifetime expected

credit losses upon significant increase in credit risk.

31 March 2023 Gross carrying | Expected probability | Expected credit | Carrying amount
amount of losses net of loss
default allowance
Cash and cash equivalents 72.33 - - 72.33
Other bank balances 16.12 - - 16.12
Loans 9,148.94 - - 9,148.94
Other financial assets 210.70 - - 210.70

31 March 2022

Gross carrying

Expected probability

Expected credit

Carrying amount

amount of losses net of loss

default allowance
Cash and cash equivaients 254.88 - - 254.88
Other bank balances 2.50 - - 2.50
Loans 8,214.81 - - 8,214.81
Other financial assets 274.40 - - 274.40

(i) Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach

As at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022, the Company considered the individual probabilities of default of its financial assets (other than trade receivables) and
determined that in respect of counterparties with low credit risk, no default events are considered to be possible within the 12 menths after the reporting date. In
respect of trade receivables, the Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses using a simplified approach.

As at 31 March 2023

Gross carrying

% of expected credit

Allowance for

Carrying amount

amount losses expected credit net of loss
losses allowance
Amount nol yet due 1,777.61 - - 1,777.61
Belween one to six month overdue 608.57 - - 608.57
Between six month to one year overdue 88.77 - - 88.77
Greater than one year overdue 118.77 27.27% (32.39) 86.38
Total 2,593.72 (32.39) 2,561.33
As at 31 March 2022 Gross carrying | % of expected credit | Allowance for | Carrying amount
amount losses expected credit net of loss
losses allowance
Amount not yet due 1,992.14 - - 1,992.14
Between one to six month overdue 934.51 - - 934,51
Between six month to one year overdue 33.52 - - 33.52
Grealer than one year overdue 106.08 25.42% (26.96) 79.10
Total 3,066.23 (26.96) 3,039.27

Reconciliation of loss allowance provision from beginning to end of reporting period:

Reconciliation of loss allowance

Trade receivables

Loss allowance on 1 April 2021 (57.38)
Charge in statement of profit and loss -

Release to slatement of profit and loss 3042
Loss allowance on 31 March 2022/ 1 April 2022 (26.96)
Charge in statement of profit and loss (5.43)
Release to statement of profit and loss -

Loss allowance on 31 March 2023 (32.39)




Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited
CIN - U24239DL2004PLC125888

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in ¥ million unfess otherwise slaled)

C.3 Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the enlity will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligalions associated with its financial liabilities that are seftled by delivering cash or
another financial asset. The entity's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are

(a

(b

£

due.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the entity’s liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The enlity takes into

account the liquidity of the market in which the entity operates.

Financing arrangements

The Company has access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period:

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
Working capilal facility 1,822.25 631.36

Maturities of financial liabilities

The tables below analyse the entity's financial liabilities inlo relevant maturity entiting's based on their contractual maturities.
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of

discounting is not significant:

31 March 2023 Less than 1 year 1-5years More than 5§ Total
years
Non-derivatives
Borrowing (including current maturities of long term debt) along with estimated 1,237.10 218.75 - 1,455.85
future interest obligation
Trade payable 1,779.72 - - 1,779.72
Lease liabilities 17.43 88.47 319.28 425.18
Other financial liabilities 970.09 10,152.89 - 11,122.98
Total 4,004.34 10,460.11 319.28 14,783.73
31 March 2022 Less than 1 year 1-5years More than 5 Total
years
Non-derivatives
Borrowing (including current maturities of long term debt) along with estimated 1,222.16 - - 1,222.16
future inlerest obiigation
Trade payable 2,521.15 - - 2,521.16
Lease liabilities 13.79 72.05 94.86 180.70
Other financial liabiiities 94.41 10,549.45 - 10,643.86
Total 3,851.51 10,621.50 94.86 14,567.87
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Akums Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited

CIN - U24239DL2004PLC125888

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in ¥ million unless otherwise sfaled)

46 Tax expense

(a

(b

)

Income {ax expense in the statement of profit and loss comprises:

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2023

Year ended
31 March 2022

Current income-tax

for current year 413.29 15.63
for earlier years (3.32) (12.21)
Total 409.97 3.42
Deferred tax charge (including other comprehensive income)Deferred taxes (159.28) 465.46
Tax expense 250.69 468.88
Current tax
a) Reconciliation of lax expense applicable to profit before tax at the latest statutory enacted tax rate in India to income tax expense reported is as follows:
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Profit before tax 1,503.19 (3,349.76)
Income tax using the Company's domeslic tax rate * 2517% 25.17%
Expected tax expense [A] 378.32 (843.07)
Tax effect of adjustment to reconcile expected income tax expense to reported income tax expense
Change of lax rates - 94.41
Effect of non-deductible expenses and others (124.31) 1,229.75
Income- tax for earlier years (3.32) (12.21)
Total adjustments [B] (127.63) 1,311.95
Actual tax expense [C=A+B] 250.69 468.88
*Domestic tax rate applicable to the Company has been computed as foliows
Base tax rate 22% 22%
Surcharge (% of tax) 10% 10%
Cess (% of tax) 4% 4%
Applicable rate of tax 25.17% 2517%

Changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year ended 31 March 2023 :-

Particulars As at Recognised in other Recognised in As at

31 March 2022 comprehensive profitand loss 31 March 2023

income

Deferred tax liability consists of:
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (205.87) - (62.24) (268.11)
Deferred tax assets consists of:
Employee benefits 23.41 (1.80) 2.90 24.51
Provision for credit losses on financial assets 6.78 - 8.37 15.15
Lease liability 3.64 - 66.76 70.40
Provision for sales tax 4410 - (44.10) -
Provision for dimunition in value of intangible assets - - 175.65 175.55
Provision for demand raised by statutory authorities - - 13.84 13.84
Net deferred tax asset/ (liability) (127.94) (1.80) 161.08 31.34
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Changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year ended 31 March 2022:-

Particulars As at Recognised in other Recognised in As at
5 31 March 2021 comprehensive profitand loss 31 March 2022
income

Deferred tax liability consists of:

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assels (314.54) - 108.67 (205.87)
Deferred tax assets consists of:

Employee benefits 34.84 (0.89) (10.54) 23.41
Provision for credit losses on financial assets 20.05 - (13.27) 6.78
Lease liability 3.57 - 0.07 3.64
Provision for sales lax 61.23 - (17.13) 4410
Provision for diminution in value of loans given 532.37 - (532.37) -
Net deferred tax asset/ (liability) 337.53 (0.89) (464.57) (127.94)

Research and development expenditure

The Company has its research and development centres located in Haridwar and Mumbai which concentrates on the development of new pharmaceutical
formulations. Research and development costs incurred amounted to Rs. 247.08 million (31 March 2022 Rs. 223.64 million) (including depreciation of Rs. 30.86
million (31 March 2022: Rs. 23.07 milion) and interest expense of Rs. 1.14 milion (31 March 2022: Rs. 1.34 million) recognised in the standalone financial
statements.

Segment reporting

The Company is primarily engaged in the manufacturing of "pharmaceuticals formulations". Hence as per, chief operaling decision maker, the sale of
pharmaceuticals formulations has been considered as a single operaling segment per Ind AS 108 ‘Operating Segments' and accordingly disclosures have been
limited to single operaling segment. The revenues of the Company are majorly domestic, hence revenues from customers are only in one geographical area i.e. with
in India.

Revenue from two (previous year - one) customer, accounling for more than 10% of the total revenue, is Rs. 3,043.10 million (31 March 2022: Rs. 1,792.65 million).

Capital management

The Company's capital management objectives are to ensure the Company's ability to continue as a going concern and to provide an adequate return to
shareholders.,

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjuslments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assels. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders,
issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Gearing ratio

Particulars ' As at As at
31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022

Tolal debt (including current maturities of long term debt) 1,455.85 1,222,186
Less:

Cash and cash equivaients 72.33 254.88
Other bank balances 16.12 250
Net debt 1,367.40 964.78
Tolal equity 3,115.04 1,855.38
Equity and net debt 4,482.44 2,820.16
Gearing ratio 30.51% 34.21%
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a)

(i)
(i)
(i)

0]
(ii)
(iii)

b)

Ageing of trade receivables and trade payables as per Schedule Ill

Trade receivables ageing
The table below analyse the outsianding lrade receivables:

31 March 2023

Particulars Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payment
Lessthan6 6 months to1 1-3 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
months year years
Undisputed trade receivables- considered good 2,385,860 88.77 17.66 - 5.98 2,498.01
Disputed trade receivabies- considered good 0.59 - 41.486 - 53.66 95.71
Disputed trade receivabies- credit impaired (0.15) - (12.84) - (19.40) (32.39)
2,386.04 88.77 46.28 - 40.24 2,561.33
31 March 2022
Particulars Qutstanding for the following periods from due date of payment
Lessthané 6 monthsto 1 1-3 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
months year years
Undisputed trade receivables- considered good 2,926.65 33.52 54 65 - 2445 3,039.27
Disputed trade receivables- considered good - - - - 26.96 26.96
Disputed trade receivables- credit impaired - - - - (26.96) (26.986)
2,926.65 33.62 54.65 - 24.45 3,039.27
Nole: There are no unbilled receivables, hence same is not disclosed in the ageing schdeule,
Trade payables ageing
The table below analyse the outstanding trade payabies:
31 March 2023
Particulars Qutstanding for the following periods from due date of payment
Less than 1 1-2 years 2.3 years More than 3 Total
year years
MSME 144.30 - - - 144.30
Others 1,590.20 4.47 - 0.07 1,594.74
Unbilled dues 40.68 - - - 40.68
1,775.18 4.47 - 0.07 1,779.72
31 March 2022
Particulars Qutstanding for the following periods from due date of payments
Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
year years
MSME 96.25 - - - 96.25
Others 2,357.25 6.07 - 0.24 2,363.56
Unbilled dues 61.34 - - - 61.34
2,514.84 6.07 - 0.24 2,521.15
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51 Ratio Disclosures

Particulars Numerator Denominator Current year| Previous year % Variance
Current ratio Current Assets Current liab 1.05 1.04 1%
Deht - Equity ratio’ Tolal debt Shareholders equity 40% 66% -40%
Debt service coverage ratio’ Eamings available |Debt Service 27.66 90.00 -69%
for debt service
Return on equity raiiqz Net Profits after Average 50% -154% -133%
{axes — Preference [ Shareholder's Equity
Dividend (if any)
Inventory turnover ratio Cost of goods sold |Average Invenlory 4.19 4.08 3%
Trade receivables turnover ratio Net Credit Sales  |Avg. Accounls 460 4.15 11%
Receivable
Trade payabies turnover ratio Net Credit Average Trade 438 4.16 5%
Purchases Payables
Net capital turnover ratio Net Sales Working Capital 5247 60.19 -13%
Net profit ratio® Net Profit Net Sales 10% -29% -134%
Return on capital employed? Earning before Capilal Employed 61% 15% 295%
interest and taxes
Return on investment® Profit after tax Investment 28% 103% T2%

Reasons for variance:

'Increase in working capilal loans to finance increase in operalions have lead to change in the ratios.

20n account of fair value changes in the financial instrument (put option liability), there has been a change in the ratios.

52 Disclosures as required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act, 2006 due to micro enterprises and small

enlerprises

Particulars

As at

31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

(i) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any suipplier as at the end of each accounting year

- Principal amount due*
- Inlerest amount due

(i) The amount of inlerest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16, along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier

beyond the appoinled day during each accounling year

(iii) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the
appointed day during the year) but without adding the inlerest specified under the Act
(iv) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and
(v) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues
as abave are actually paid to the small enlerprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23.

*includes capilal credifors of € 24.64 million (31 March 2022: ¥ 3.75 million)
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53 The Company has given loans, made investment and given guarantee for various subsidiary companies and associale. The details of loans, investment made and
guaraniee outstanding as at year end is given in below mentioned table aiong with purpose of the loan and guarantee given as required u's 186(4) of the Companies Act
2013.

Name of Entity Interest rate p.a. Repayable in As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

a) Long term loan given for general corporate purpose

Amazing Research Laboratories Limited 7.5% (April 2022 to September 2022: 7%) December 2026 277.00 262.00
Akums Healthcare Limited 7.5% (April 2022 to Septermber 2022: 7%) December 2026 190.00 724.04
Akums Lifesciences Limited 7.5% (April 2022 to September 2022: 7%) December 2026 3,938.00 2,647.97
Burroughs Welcome Pharmacia Private Limited 7.5% (April 2022 to September 2022: 7%)  December 2026 107.20 4.80
AUSL Pharma 12% December 2026 - 55.00
AVHA Lifesciences Privale Limited 7.5% (April 2022 to Seplember 2022: 7%)  December 2026 - 90.00
Malik Lifesciences Private Limited 7.5% (April 2022 to Seplember 2022: 7%) December 2026 1,369.00 1,203.00
Maxcure Nutravedics Limited 7.5% (April 2022 to September 2022: 7%) December 2026 - 692.33
Nicholas Healthcare Limiled 7.5% (April 2022 to September 2022: 7%)  December 2026 47.50 685.00
Plenteous Pharmaceuticals Limited 7.5% (April 2022 to September 2022: 7%) December 2026 490.00 581.90
Pure and Cure Healthcare Private Limited 7.5% (April 2022 to Seplember 2022: 7%) December 2026 1,863.00 7.45
Sarvagunaushdhi Privale Limited® 7.5% (April 2022 fo September 2022: 7%)  December 2026 - 410.00
Upadhrish Reserchem LLP 7.5% (April 2022 fo Seplember 2022: 7%)  December 2026 193.90 105.90
Uneosource Pharma Limited 7.5% (April 2022 to September 2022: 7%)  December 2026 520.00 710.00
Total (A) 9,095.60 8,179.39
Total loans given (A) 9,095.60 8,179.39

* The Company pursuant to providing support to its subsidiary had decided in earfier years nol fo charge interest on the loans given in earlier years of Rs. 380 million.
However, during the cument year the Company had charged interest @ 7% on the entire amount outstanding.
The above loan figures doesn't includes interest receivable from related parties amounting to & 53.34 million (31 March 2022: & 35.41 million)

c) Particulars of Investment made- Equity instruments*

Akumentis Healthcare Limited 170.7¢ 170.79
Akums Healthcare Limited 1.00 1.00
Akums Lifesciences Limiled 154.40 154.40
Amazing Research Laboratories Limited 1.95 1.95
AVHA Lifesciences Private Limited - 0.10
Burroughs Welcome Pharmacia Privale Limiled 0.01 0.01
Deicure Lifesciences Limiled - 7.25
Malik Lifesciences Private Limited 34.85 34.85
Maxcure Nutravedics Limited 80.42 80.42
May and Baker Pharmaceuticals Limited 0.50 0.50
Medibox Digital Solutions Private Limiled - 30.64
Nicholas Healthcare Limited 0.50 0.50
Plenteous Pharmaceuticals Limited 0.50 0.50
Pure and Cure Healthcare Private Limiled 324.67 324.67
Sarvagunaushdhi Private Limited 0.10 0.10
Unosource Pharma Limited 196.20 180.00
Total (B) 965.89 987.68

d) Particulars of Investment made- Cumulative compulsory convertible participating preference shares

Akumentis Healthcare Limited 424.21 424.21
Total (C) 42421 424.21
Total investments made (B+C) 1,380.10 1,411.89

*As per requiremenl of Section 186(4), disclosure is required in regards to body corporates only

e) Guarantee given for subsidiary Companies bank loan availed by them™

Akums Lifesciences Limited 1,550.00 150.00
Unosource Pharma Limiled 180.00 -
Plenteous Pharmaceuticals Limited 64.56 50.00
Amazing Research Laboratories Limiled 46.92 53.40
May and Baker Pharmaceuticals Limited 8.09 50.00
Total (guarantee) 1,849.57 303.40
*represents corporale guarantee given to subsidiaries for the loan taken by them. The guarantee given has been restricted to the amount of loan oulstanding as on the
closing dale.
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54 Lease

{a) a) The Company recorded the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments discounied at the incremental borrowing rate and the Right of Use assets at its
carrying amount as if the standard had been appiied since the commencement date of the lease, but discounted at the lesses's incremental borrowing rate at the date

(b) The weightéd average lessee's incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease liabilities was 9% p.a.
(c) Since there was no change made in original lease conlract in the current financial year, no reassement or revalualion done for the Right-of-use assets created
(d) The table below describes the nature of the Company's leasing activities by type of right-of-use asset recognised as on 31 March 2023:
As at 31 March 2023:
Right-of-use assets No of right-of-use Range of Average
assets leased remaining remaining lease
term(years) term (years)
Land 7 30-94 82
Buildings 5 4-7 6
As at 31 March 2022:
Right-of-use assets No of right-of-use Range of Average
assets leased remaining remaining lease
term(years) term (years)
Land 7 89.95 91
Buildings 4 5-8 7

There are no leases entered by the company which have any exiention, termination or purchase option and the payment of lease rentals is not based on variable

payments which are linked to an index.

(e} Amount recognised in balance sheet and stalement of profit and loss:

Particulars Category of Right-of-use assets
Land Buildings Total
Balance as at 1 April 2021 (on account of application of Ind AS 116) 119.60 173.98 293.58
Add: Additions during the year - 13.70 13.70
Less: Amortisation charged on the right-of-use assets (refer note 32) 1.52 21.43 22.95
Balance as at 31 March 2022/ 1 April 2022 118.08 166.25 284.33
Add: Additions during the year 260.39 0.87 261.26
Less: Lease lerminated 40,98 - 40.98
Less: Amorlisation charged on the right-of-use assets (refer nole 32) 5.46 21.65 27.11
Balance as at 31 March 2023 332.03 14547 477.50
(f) Lease payment not recognised as lease liability
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Expenses relating to short term leases (refer note 30) 18.24 10.21
Total 18.24 10.21

(g) The lotal cash outflow for leases for the year ended 31 March 2023 was ¥ 42,21 million. (31 March 2022: ¥ 16.64 million)
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(h) Future minimum lease payments
As at 31 March 2023
Minimum Lease payments due As at 31 March 2023
Lease payment Finance charges| Net Present
Value
Within 1 Year 54.99 37.56 17.43
1-10 Year 426.93 248.20 178.73
10-20 Year 249.55 179.51 70.04
More than 20 Year 237.07 78.09 158.98
Total 968.54 543.36 425.18
As at 31 March 2022
Minimum Lease payments due As at 31 March 2022
Lease payment |Finance charges| NetPresent
Value
Within 1 Year 29.50 15.71 13.79
1-5 Year 120.00 47.95 72.05
More than 5 Year 111.61 16.75 94.86
Total 261.11 80.41 180.70
55 Postreporting date events
No adjusting or significant non adjusling event has occured between 31 March 2023 and date of authorisation of Company's slandalone financial statements.
56 Other statutory information

(a) The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.
(b) The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off.

(c) The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.

(d) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

(e) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or enlity(ies), including foreign entiies (Inlermediaries) with the

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatscever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or (ii)
provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(f) The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded
in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entiies identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(i) provide any guaranlee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

(g) The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year
in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961

(h) The Company is not declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any govemment authority.
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